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Operating Results
Turnover

EBITDA

Profit before disposal of investments
Profit attributable to shareholders

Earnings per share - fully diluted (HK cents)

Financial Position
Total assets
Cash reserves

Shareholders' fund

Financial Ratio
ROA {Return on assets) (%)
ROE (Return on equity) (%)

Current ratio (times)

Others
Interim dividend (HK cents)
Proposed final dividend (HK cents)

Proposed special dividend (HK cents)

18,665
19,267
20,233

11,004
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EBITDA for the year ended 31st March
EBITDA #E=5=+-3 7%
HKSm B E BT

2003 2002* Increase /
(HK$m) (HKSM) (Decrease)
(B BEER) (BBHET) #/ CR)
20,233 19,267 5.0%
1,175 973 20.8%
1,044 862 21.1%
1,017 1,026 (0.9%)
13.54 13.55 (0.1%)
6,756 5,692 18.7%
2,808 2,441 15.0%
4,189 3,682 13.8%
14.5 17.0 (14.7%)
25.6 30.3 (15.5%)
2.1 2.2 (4.6%)

18 1.5 20.0%
3.0 36 (18.7%)

5.2 - N/A

C ite [T business
sa.49% 0 SERLET ™

33.7% D (;Dés#nj%e;g business
Handheld device business
7% sawgse

IT service business

0.9% B rrwEyn

Cantract manufacturing business
49% 03 Zmmezs

TURNOVER BREAKDOWN BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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For most IT businesses in China and throughout the world, 2002 was a year
of unease yet memorable. The global IT industry remained mired in stagnant
markets. Even in China, while GDP growth reached a phenomenal 8%, the
industry suffered a sluggish growth level seldom seen in recent years.

Despite the stalled global situation, | am delighted to report that the Group
continued to solidify both of its growth momentum and the leadership position
in the market. During the fiscal year, the Group achieved rapid profit growth,
which attained all the targets we set at the beginning of the year. Even more
encouraging were the Group's technological innovations, evidenced by the
“Legend World 2002” convention and the roll out of the supercomputer. As
Chairman of the Board, | am deeply impressed by the remarkable
performance of our young management team, headed by Mr Yang Yuanaing,
over the course of the challenging year.
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For most IT businesses in china

and throughout the world,
2002 was a year of
unease yet memorable.
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| believe that the ongoing development of new and cutting-edge technology
will continue to play an ever significant role of IT industry in contributing to
the social development and economic growth around the world. The global
slowdown of the IT industry over the past two years was, | believe, only
temporary, and reflected an underlying need of the IT industry for continued
transformation and innovation. Though SARS (Severe Acute Respiratory
Syndrome) affected China’s information industry for the short-term, it is
expected to stimulate and accelerate [T's applications at home as well as in
business. The continued growth of China’'s economy will certainly generate
opportunities for its T industry, and lay a solid foundation for the Group’s

future business development.

The ultimate goal of the Group is to become a vibrant and long-lasting
enterprise. With the energy and devotion of the Group’s management,
together with their entrepreneurial spirit and innovative business strategies,
I am confident that we are well on the journey of creating substantial returns

for our shareholders in the long-run.

Z_/a %«w 2%,‘

Liu Chuanzhi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28th May 2003
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Which aspect of the
This would have to be the Group’s progress
technological innovations that we over the past year do
you see as the most
significant?

achieved. During the year, one of
the Group’s most important

achievements was its launch of the
supercomputer in last August. This
was the first computer in China to achieve a computing speed of 1,000
GFLOPS (Giga Floating Operations Per Second), an achievement that placed
it 43rd in the global Top 500 supercomputer list. Cur technological innovations
achieved significant results in 2002. In total, we applied for 371 patents, a
record for the Group and an achievement which placed us in China’s top
ten list. Of these 371 patent applications, 194 were invention-related.
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With the decline of the turnover in China’s hardware market over the past
fiscal year, we adopted a profit-centric strategy. The Group’s traditional PC
business continued to record remarkable profit growth. In the second quarter
of 2002, sales volumes of our desktop computers ranked for the first time
amongst the world’s top five PC vendors, with consumer PCs achieving
global top three status. Sales of server products also recorded spectacular
growth, ranking seventh in the world. In September 2002, our “Supremia
9220” and "Kaitian 6800” models were awarded “2002 Intel Innovative PC
Award”,

The advances in technology and value-added services also enabled us to
achieve important breakthroughs in new businesses. For example, our digital
products business has expanded at an astonishing speed, growing ten times
faster than in 2001. Consumer printer sales were also impressive, with our
printers becoming the top seller amongst all local Chinese brands, and with
product lines embracing both high-end and low-end markets. Qur digital
cameras also recorded strong sales, surpassing our expectation and
becoming the second best seller in China’s digital camera market. Our IT
service business made a strong start with the “Three-horizontal and Four-
vertical” framework. Our mobile handset business was successfully launched
at the beginning of the year, and has recorded operating results that
surpassed initial expectations.

“Legend World 2002” was a powerful showcase for the Group's technological
strengths, and was a starting point for our “Technology Era”.
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What is the value of
your brand? Why
did you change
Legend’s logo?

Looking back to the development of
“Legend” from a mere product name
to a strong brand name today, it is

clear that branding has played a
significant role in our development.
And we always recognise the importance of establishing our own brand.
From early days between 1984 when the company was founded, to around
1990, the first generation of Legend staff started our branding effort through
the commitment to their standards of integrity and business practices, which
laid the foundation for a clear, positive brand image. Since 1990, we have
successfully established and developed the "Legend” brand, along the way
adopting more professional brand management and better strategies which
have enriched the brand's intrinsic values and established it as a cornerstone
for future success.

Our brand embodies four superb attributes. As a corporation, we aspire to
be “Trustworthy”, “Innovative and Energetic”, “Superior Professicnal
Services” and “Easy”. “Trustworthy” represents the innermaost core value of
our brand, while the need to offer “Superior Professional Services” is like a
DNA code built into every staff member. “Innovative and Energetic” speaks
of vitality, of the urge to constantly innovate, to swiftly and flexibly adapt to
customers’ needs, and to continuously roll out advanced products and
services. Finally, “Easy” refers to our commitment to user friendliness,
incorporated into every aspect of the product design and development

philosophy.

| believe our brand value is built by our hard work and track record. Every
employes is a representative for our brand. Of course our brand value
ultimately has to be experienced and appreciated by society and our
customers. On top of the ceaseless effort of different generations of our
staff, the support given by our society also places an indispensable role in
our brand value. Our goal is to leverage our strengths and make Legend a
famous and respected brand not only in China but also all over the world.
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To further develop our brand and make it more consistent with our long-
term strategic vision, last year we initiated a comprehensive reassessment
of our brand strategy, eventually deciding to adopt a single brand structure.
Since our criginal English brand name “Legend” has already been registered
by businesses in many countries, we started to change our logo from
“Legend” to “lenovo” from April this year. This change is also a preparatory
step for our planned expansion into international markets. “fenovo” represents
“an innovative Legend”, and is a name that | believe will better represent our
increasingly diversified business development and better reflect the unique
attributes of our brand value, paving the way for our prighter future.

What do you
consider to be the
Group’s core
competence?

From fundamental and long-term
perspective, our corporate culture and
management capabilities are the most
important core competence. We have
drawn on 19 years of effort and experience
to arrive at the management system and corporate culture of teday, and these
two elements are undoubtedly key factors that have contributed most to our
growth in the past and our solid business foundations.

Our corporate culture is the crystallisation of the ideology, the wisdom, and
the experience of two generations of our staff. Our core values are
summarised in four slogans: “Serving Customers”, “Accuracy and Truth
Seeking”, “Trustworthy and Integrity” and “Innovative and Can Do Spirit”.
These phrases precisely summarise the unique features of our corporate
culture. “Trustworthy and Integrity” is at its root, representing the fundamental
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ethic and essential ingredient for nurturing systematic and transparent
management processes. As a people-oriented company, Legend has a
mission to provide its staff with the greatest possible scope for personal
development, leading to enhancement of value and improvement of work
and life quality. Our staff incorporate their personal aspirations into the

company'’s long-term development.

We are an organisation that is managed by rules rather than by any single
individual, and we operate according to comprehensive objectives, appraisal
and incentive systems. Our capabilities also enable us to quickly put together
a capable and powerful task force, armed with strong leadership skills and
ready to react to the ever-changing needs of the market.

From business perspectives, our understanding of the market and our ability
to react swiftly to its changes is another of our core competences, and is
reflected in our customer-oriented, user-friendly product designs and services.

What are the “Collaborating
Applications” that you
introduced at “Legend

World 2002”? What are your
strategies for achieving these
“Collaborating Applications”?

Collaborating
Applications is our
vision for technological
innovation over the
next five to ten years,

and is one of our most
important technology
strategies. The biggest problem with personal information terminals,
corporate information applications and social information services is the
disconnection and isolation of applications, leading to considerable wastage
of resources. To tackle this problem, we introduced the concept of
Collaborating Applications.
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The concept behind Collaborating Applications is threefold. (1) Collaborating
Applications for personal information terminal devices. We believe that by
using a standard protocol, different personal information terminals such as
electrical appliances, telecommunications products and computers, can be
functionally connected and share resources and services. (2) Collaborating
Applications for corporate IT systems. This allows the enhancement of
applications and structural management. This will in turn result in optimum
sharing and utilisation of resources through centralised management of
fundamental structures and dynamic optimisation. (3) Collaborating
Applications for communal information systems. These will enable IT service
providers to provide enterprises, organisations and individuals with the
applications and services in a more effective and convenient manner, through

their worldwide IT infrastructure and application resources.

We have made some progress in the field of Collaborating Applications.
For instance, we have developed a Coliaborating Terminal Protocol for
personal information terminals whereby different terminals preset with this
protocol, whether they be electrical appliances, telecommunications
products, computers or other such objects, can connect through the Internet
to create new functions and applications. We believe Collaborating
Applications for personal information terminals is a vital step towards 3C
convergence, and offers great potential for future development.

We also believe that to promote and ultimately translate the Collaborating
Applications into a widely accepted reality, it is essential to have the active
involvement and investment of parties as many as possible that share the
same vision. We welcome any opportunities to cooperate with other
institutions in China or overseas to embrace a new era of Collaborating
Applications.
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What is your view
on the future trend
for IT market in
China?

Most market participants believe that
the slowdown in the growth of China
IT industry over the last two years is a

temporary phenomenon, and China IT

market remains one of the most

attractive markets in terms of potential for growth, likely soon to be back on
the double-digit growth track. The immense potential of China IT industry
has already attracted numerous global IT enterprises, a development that
has helped China IT industry to foster a relatively complete industry supply
chain within a short period of time, therefore enhance the overall
competences of China IT industry.

For the segment markets, we noted some new growth areas. Demand for
IT services is growing strongly and becoming more diversified, and is
estimated to become a US$15 billion market within five years. As wireless
technologies continue to develop, together with the evoiution of commercial
practices and consumer lifestyles, wireless applications and terminal devices
are expected to perform strongly. Analysts have predicted a compound
annual growth rate (CAGR) of over 25% across the next few years. Back-
office products tco, including peripherals, are expected to enjoy a CAGR of
more than 20% over the next five years.

China is a vast country with considerable differences, in terms of economic
and social development amongst different regions. After ten years of
education and investment, IT infrastructure level in some large cities are
relatively advanced, leading to constant demand for more enhanced IT
equipment and applications upgrade. On the other hand, IT infrastructure
levels in many small and medium-sized cities remain relatively low. This in
fact represents tremendous opportunities for the industry. From long term
perspective, in order to establish a strong foothold in China market, one
shall have in-depth knowledge of market, ability to respond to customers’
needs, a powerful brand and technological expertise.
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What are the driving
forces that will propel
Legend’s growth?

The driving forces for our
growth will come both within
the company and from the
external market. We are a
very young company. The average age of our energetic, enthusiastic staff is
just 29. Nevertheless, we strive to become a vibrant and legendary company.

From the near term perspective, we are well prepared and well placed. Our
strategic transformation has already shown positive resuits and our
organisation has already had a truly customer-oriented operational structure.
We have fostered a range of high-potential businesses, which will continue
to propel our growth. Sales of our servers and notebook computers have
sustained strong growth, and we believe that aiming for annual growth of
over 30% is viable. Our information security products are backed by cutting-
edge technologies, rendering them highly competitive in the marketplace.
Our mobile handsets and digital products will continue to sustain their current
rapid growth.

All these factors, in combination with promising market conditions in China,
have positioned us well in a very favourable environment. The robust growth
of the China IT market certainly offers us tremendous development potentials.
Meanwhile, we will make our long term strategic plans for international
markets, which allow us to capture growth opportunities and consolidate

resources in a wider horizon.

I am highly confident that we will continue our track record of delivering
long-term value and satisfying returns for our shareholders.
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What it takes to become an

evergreen and long-lasting company:
Be people-oriented;

our company’s culture will be inherited from
generation to generation.
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A strong corporate culture is the foundation for developing a vibrant and long-lasting company
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These four core values -
represent -

POARAZL -

BEAKRT

Liu Chuanzhi's views on
Legend’s corporate culture
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Comerstone of Legend's culture
TELNER

Secret for our success
EERSERNER

Key methodology for problem solving

TEBREAENERRINBAT X

= Fundamental principle that guides the way we think as well as cur behaviour

CENE THANBRTMITRER

Yang Yuanging's views on
“Trustworthy and Integrity”

BrEEREXE

Incorporating personal aspirations into our long-term corporate
development is a fundamental reason for our success. It is also
the essence of our corporate culture, Our ultimate goal is to be
responsible for our customers, staff, shareholders and society. In
order to achieve this goal, we have to make sure that our people’s
professional responsibilities are well in line with their personal
benefits. Most essential is ensuring that every Legend employee
understands and believes this value; their efforts will surely be

transformed towards our goal of building a Legend of century.
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Without “Trustworthy and Integrity”, neither individuals nor
companies will survive in the long run. But “Trustworthy and
Integrity” do not refer to success or failure for a specific
transaction; they are part of a company’s genuine character that
defines Legend. Valuing honesty and integrity, and treating others
sincerely are basic values of our people. These values are
fundamental ingredients to make our work on high standard and
transparency. As a people-oriented company, we are committed
to creating development opportunities, increasing employee value,

and enhancing both the work quality and lifestyle.
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“Trustworthy” represents the innermost core value of
our brand. Legend believes honesty and sincerity as
guiding principles, and is totally committed to

following these principles. This is the best way to be
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

ANALY OIO
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Besides the launch of the first ever supercomputer in China in August 2002,

Legend also unveiled other new corporate [T products in the 2002/03 financial

year. After the launch of its Xeon server series, the Group also rolled out a

serigs of new server products based on ftanium 2. The substantial increase in

shipment of dual processor and multi-processor servers has helped Legend

to firm its position as number one server brand among Chinese vendors.
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Legend'’s vision is to become a “High-tech
Legend”, a goal reinforced to its staff on a
daily basis. Leveraging the Group’s research
capabilities in high-performance computing
technologies, over the course of four months more than 60 technical professionals
had developed the first supercomputer in China to reach a computing speed of
7,000 GFLOPS (Giga Floating Operations Per Second).

Dubbed the “Despcomp 1800", Legend’s supercomputer debuted in August last
year. Its computing speed of 1,050 GFLOPS ranked 43rd in the Top 500 list of the
world's fastest computers (http://www.top500.0rg), an achievement selected as
one of the Xinhua News Agency's top ten news stories in China for the year. Within
just a year, Legend'’s supercomputer had already been adopted by a number of
high-end users such as the Chinese Academy of Sciences, China National Space
Administration and China National Offshore Ol Corporation.

In the process of developing the supercomputer, Legend also created a series of new
technologies protected by intellectual property patents, successfully acquired three
patents for invention and one patent for a new prodiuct mode!. Appiications for additional
ten invention patents and four more new product patents are currently being processed,
showing Legend’s firm grasp of the core techriologies involved in high-performance
computing as well as technologies which can also be used in ordinary servers and
back-office computing equipment. These developments have successfully enhanced
the technological standards of Legend's servers, and established Legend as the number
one brand for domestic manufactured servers in China.
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Market Share of Top 5 PC Brands in China
TEIABMRETBAEER

Sou IDC, February 2003
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Under this market environment, Legend'’s corporate IT business recorded EEENTERET BECRETEBOEES
a 7.2% rise in turnover, with sales of servers and notebook computers BIETFLLF7.2%8BE - EFRREENELA
SREERER - BRBECE TEBNERE
Legend's corporate [T business showed improvement. Gross profit margin IEEFEYERRIERTERBE - X7
improved to 15.3% from 14.2% of the past year while operating profit ERAEAMAEER - ENEHEF142% £
grew 29.9%. Education and SME sectors drove the growth. The increased FFE15.3%  KEFEELL FIEE29.9% © X
sales to the education sector and the reduction on component tariff have EEECEITEBRNENNE—DREA - HF
led to & drop in the overall average selling price (ASP). ¥ PPN EERTEMEREYD - ARHEE
BLOley RSN E RS E AR TRE - F
HEETREA -
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achieved the fastest growth. Both gross profit and operating profit of
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Continued breakthroughs in technological innovation BT S IRG#E — 5 R

Legend achieved the goals of product differentiation and value added by BBBEIETRNER ERHAAE - R
applying new and cutting-edge technologies to its products such as & - BT ERZ AU ZE RIS ER
supercomputers, servers, and PCs, thus greatly improved profit margins for B8 - BEERES T2002/0381 F AFEE AIGE
the financial year. FHIRITEE -
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Beijing Wu Yu Tai Tea Company (“Wu Yu Tai") I RRBFERERF([REFE)B—KE115F

is a well-known tea company with a 115-year BLHETE TEEFBLEE WIERAEE
history, whose major business is production EFITHERE - DAIBE2REEE - 15058

and processing of tea, and supply for retail T FERERIEARY BEZXBEE
outlets. The company has 32 retail outlets REFUHEF LT EERYE - RIWEFTEB

‘ ; . and 150 employees, and an annual turnover EEILAEAELRE  WiEE THSEARZE
- of about RMB100 million. Following expansion, 1EIRE Byt Em - ‘
' Wu Yu Tai ran into operational bottlenecks. The company believed that
" informatisation would provide an effective solution, and sefected Legend as the EIRE EBET  BESIIT 1 for 1/ AR
provider of the profect . B ARBHEFERELEEE B8
; BRI EHEENER LB ERE R
| The project involved extensive business consultation and solutions design amongst R ERARE - FHREEESESE -
other things, and Legend’s “IT 1 for 1" played an instrumental role. The Group's channe/
| partner, Beiing Beiwei Machine Electron Technology Co. Ltd., gave full support when MHIBEFBEM RS  RiEg TIRAE L & |
. It came to faying networks, supplying products, and providing maintenance. P Hms B EEY  EHTHRE 85
& BEF BE EF HESEISLIZERE
Once Legend’s system was adopted, Wu Yu Tai achieved significant improvements HEE BRI GEEEELLE - |
as information transparency was greatly enhanced. These changes facilitated inter- I
departmental information flow, and enhanced the management and internal control 3
of the company by more closely linking the processes of procurement, sales,
inventory management, transportation, delivery and invoicing.
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Besides the launch of the first ever supercomputer in China in August 2002,

Legend also unveiled other new corporate IT products in the 2002/03 financial

year. After the launch of its Xeon server series, the Group also rolled out a
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Legend’s vision is to become a “High-tech BENERZ - A [SREEE]  §—X }

Legend”, a goal reinforced to its staff on a
daily basis. Leveraging the Group’s research
capabiiities in high-performance computing
technologies, over the course of four months more than 60 technical professionals
had developed the first supercomputer in China to reach a computing speed of
1,000 GFLOPS (Giga Floating Operations Per Second).

Dubbed the “Deepcomp 1800", Legend'’s supercomputer debuted in August last
year. lts computing speed of 1,050 GFLOPS ranked 43rd in the Top 500 list of the
world'’s fastest computers (http://www.top500.0rg), an achievement selected as
one of the Xinhua News Agency's top ten news stories in China for the year. Within
just a year, Legend’s supercomputer had already been adopted by a number of
high-end users such as the Chinese Academy of Sciences, China National Space
Administration and China National Offshore Oil Corporation.

In the process of developing the supercomputer, Legend also created a series of new
technologies protected by intellectual property patents, successfully acquired three
patents for invention and one patent for a new product model. Applications for additional
ten invention patents and four more new product patents are currently being processed,
showing Legend’s firm grasp of the core technologies involved in high-performance
computing as well as technologies which can also be used in ordinary servers and
back-office computing equipment. These developments have successfully enhanced
the technological standards of Legend's servers, and established Legend as the number
one brand for domestic manufactured servers in China.
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Legend's in-house commercial PC series - “Kaitian” received good market
response after its launch in 2002 and stimulated revenue growth of the
Group’s corporate T business, “Kaitian 6800" series captured the “Intel
Innovative PC Award” in the United States, an accolade that has successiully

boosted Legend'’s brand image.

In-depth service transformation

Targeting SMEs, Legend’s “IT 1 for 1" scheme focused on technology,
application solutions, and resources integration. It achieved significant results
in facilitating channel transformation and established comprehensive
business structures of consultation, solutions, operations, and services.
Approximately 500 channel partners were trained for “IT 1 for 1" and achieved
the Group's service standards. Over 200 of them have become partners of
Legend’s “IT 1 for 1" sales centres, working hand-in-hand with Legend to
expand its value-added service business nationwide. More than 20 products
were rolled out in the past year, 15 of which have already attained intellectual
property rights, while Legend’s “IT 1 for 1” application solutions have received

numerous industry awards.

Further development in vertical markets
Legend continued to expand in the education and SME markets, further
solidifying its top position in the market.

Legend has already developed a comprehensive system of application
solutions for the education sector focusing on school Intranet and wide
arga network (WAN). They covered 80% of demand from the Group's target
market. Legend’s education solutions have been widely and successfully
applied and have now benefited cver 2,000 clients.

Legend has also made significant progress in vertical industries and
accumulated valuable experience along the way. The Group has developed
an extensive range of application solutions for SMEs. It has also accumulated
solid experience in consultation and in providing IT services for specific
industries, such as retail and manufacturing. The Group’s corporate IT
solutions have been successfully adopted by around 300 clients.
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Consumer IT Business

As a result of the economic development of second-tier and third-tier cities
in China and the increasing popularity of digital products nationwide, the
home PC market in China sustained stable growth in 2002*, with unit
shipment increased 12.7% over the previous year. Owing to the relatively
faster growth of the low to mid-end markets and falling prices and tariff
reduction of computer components, the overall sales value of this market
dropped 7.4% compared with the previous year.

The Group’s home PC unit shipment rose by 9.5% but overall turnover of
Legend’s consumer T business decreased by 7.8%, similar to the general
decrease in the market. During the year, the Group put greater emphasis
on its profit and profit margins. The launch of its unique new dual mode
home PC helped improve gross profit margin and operating profit. Gross
profit margin of this business division increased to 13.3% from last year’s
10.8% while profit contribution surged 55% from last year.

Product innovation improves profit

Legend has long been dedicated to providing Chinese consumers with
innovative, user-friendly, and trend-setting products. In Qctober last year,
the Group rolled out a new generation of dual mode home PCs, “Tianjiao”
and “Tianrui” series. These series utilise Legend’s self-developed operating
system LEOS, which combines PC functions with those of electrical
appliances to create a new standard for digital applications. The “Tianjiao”
and “Tianrui” dual mode PCs provide user-friendly and enriched digital
applications. Users can play music and view digital photos on hard disk,
storage card and CD ROM by simply pressing a button. This product series
represented a major stride forward for Legend and created a distinct
advantage over its competitors in terms of both product technology and
applications. The “Tianjiao” PC series in particular has won numerous product
design awards from both China and Hong Kong.

* 2002 represents the period from April 2002 to March 2003
2001 represents the period from April 2001 to March 2002
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Further expansion of “lenovo 1+1 Home Specialty Shops”

Legend continued to expand its network of “lenovo 1+1 Home Specialty
Shops”. The number of shops increased from 570 last year to 760 in order
to meet the growing demand in small to medium cities. The Group's
marketing activities for consumer products have achieved impressive results.
Both its National Day promotion and the promotion for old customers
received well responses.
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Digital products are becoming increasingly
popular in China. However, research has
shown widespread dissatisfaction among
Chinese families with many current digital
applications, largely due to the complexity
of creating digital documents (such as digital photo albums and audio-video clips)
using ordinary PCs and inconvenience in viewing or sharing these files. Because it
is difficult to solve this problem using standard computing operations, Legend's
engineers have addressed user needs by developing a completely new method
which has led to the birth of Legend'’s dual mode computers.

Legend'’s self-developed “LEOS” operating system is perhaps the most unique
feature of the dual mode computers, the “Tianjiac” and “Tianrul” series launched in
October last year. While retaining the computing functions of a PC, the LEOS
operating system allows PC functions to collaborate with those of electrical
appliances. Without going through the traditional operating system, users can run
MP3, CD, DVD, VCD, or any video and music files on the hard disk, simply by
pressing the LEOS power supply button on the control panel or the on/off button
on the remote control. The whole process takes just twenty seconds.

The invention of dual mode PCs has once again put Legend's spirit of innovation
and customer-oriented performance on display, at the same time creating a brand
new operational mode for home PCs. Dual mode PC series were an instant hit the
moment they were officially launched in the market,
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Successfully extending the brand to the digital arena

The digital products market in China grew rapidly in 2002. Digital cameras
and MP3 players became hot gift choices, and unit shipment of digital
cameras and MP3 players of the market grew by 200% and 100%
respectively over the year as a result of the bundled sales strategies by
many vendors. Legend also actively expanded in these markets during the
year, and successfully established the image of its digital products and its
market position. The Group performed exceptionally well in three digital
product areas. Unit shipment of Legend’s MP3 players ranked first in the
market, accounting for a share of 19.7%. Unit shipment of digital cameras
and home ink-jet printers alsc ranked among the top players.

Handheld Device Business

China mobile handset market became the world's largest market in 2002
with phenomenal growth in shipment to 65 million units. Local Chinese
vendors also continued to expand their market shares, and accounted for
an aggregate of 30% of total shipment. Legend formally entered into the
business and rolled out a wide range of mid to high-end products in a short
period of time, and actively grew its sales, distribution and service networks.
The Group’s mobile handset unit shipment during the year met our
expectations. By adding mobile handsets to its portfolio, Legend’s handheld
device business recorded a spectacular fourfold surge in turnover during
the financial year 2002/03.

In June last year, Legend increased its ownership to 80.8% in the joint
venture that engages in the mobile handset business, and at the same time
injected new capital. The total investment in this exercise amounted to
RMBG1.5 million.

The year saw Legend successfully leverage its strong brand and transfer its
deep management experience in the computer industry to the mobile
handset business, a move which helped to establish management and
operational systems for this new business. Expansion of product lines and
sales and distribution networks were a primary emphasis over the year.
Since its first product launch last June, Legend has developed over ten
mobile handset medels, including GSM and CDMA handsets, and also rolled
out colour-screen handsets in November last year. Boasting trend-setting
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designs and popular polyphonic ring tones, Legend'’s handsets were very
well received by the market. Among all the models, “Legend G808” with its
streamlined design and 40-chord ring tones has made itself a market favourite
and earned a 4% market share amongst mobile handsets selling for the
range of RMB2,500 to 3,000. Legend also set up bases in Shanghai and
Xiamen to nurture its research and development capabllities, while continuing
close cooperation with overseas companies such as Texas Instruments in
the creation of products based on self-developed technologies.
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Legend has achieved highly positive results

since it debuted the strategy of technological
innovation a year ago. "Legend World 2002"
showed Legend'’s visions, strategies and the
exciting results it has achieved.

“World” was a premier event within the IT and
1 telecommunications industry. Previous hosts included renowned IT enterprises such
as I1BM, Intel and Oracle. Legend was the first Chinese IT enterprise to host this
kind of world-class convention.

“Legend World 2002” took place in December in Bejjing. Legend intraduced its
‘ visionary concept for the future of technological development and applications, its
( Collaborating Applications project, as well as its strategies for implementing

Collaborating Applications. The Group’s portfolio includes: (1) Collaborating
| Applications for personal information terminal devices, (2) Collaborating Applications
for corporate IT systems; and (3) Collaborating Applications for communal (including
commercial and public community) information systems.

representatives from the Chinese government, respected tertiary education

institutions, and internationally renowned IT corporations such as Microsoft, Intel,

Oracle, and Texas Instrurments. “Legend World 2002” opened up Legend's

"Technology Era”, and was an important milestone on Legend's path to technological
| innovation.

|
i
} Over 5,000 domestic and overseas guests attended the convention, including
|
I
|
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Legend has established sales and distribution channels in a number of
provinces and adopted a sales and marketing model targeted at different
regions. Cooperation with large-scale nationwide distributors has also
begun. The Group has been actively providing training to sales personnel
at its retail outlets, and has now created a nationwide sales network with
over 3,000 retail points and a network of 26 service centres in China.

Driven by industry-specific applications, the pocket PC market sustained
relatively rapid growth in 2002. On the other hand, lacking key new
applications to drive demand, growth momentum of the PDA market has
slowed. By comparison with last year, sales of Legend’s electronic
dictionaries have grown threefold, further solidifying the Group's strong
position in the handheld device market.

IT Service Business

The Chinese government has actively promoted informatisation, and the
Chinese enterprises found it increasingly important to enhance
competitiveness through investing in IT infrastructure. Under this
environment, Legend firmly implemented its strategy of service
transformation. Following mergers and acquisitions, the Group’s IT service
business adopted a “Three-horizontal and Four-vertical” structure, with
infrastructure platforms, horizontal applications, operations outsourcing
representing the “three-horizontal” and telecom, finance, government and
manufacturing forming the “four-vertical”. Services offered include
consultation, implementation, systems integration and outsourcing.
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Following its acquisition of Han International Consulting Company Limited
and forming of a joint venture with Al Software Company Limited, in October
last year Legend signed a Memorandum of Understanding to acquire the
business and assets of China Weal Business Machinery Company Limited,
a major telecom systems and network integrator in China. Legend Chinaweal
System & Service Company Limited was then formed in December, marking
Legend’s official entry into the telecom [T service market. The first part of
the agreed consideration amounted to about HK$60 million. The remaining
amount will be tied in with the financial performance of the new company
over the coming few years but the total consideration will not excesed HK$220
million.

Contract Manufacturing Business

The worldwide motherboard market continued to suffer sluggish growth in
2002, with growth rate fell below the earlier expectation. Though the market
achieved small growth, the competitive pricing strategies initiated by larger
manufacturers created immense pressure and impacted strongly on smaller
players. Unit shipment of Legend’s QDI motherboards amounted to
approximately 3.25 million units, slightly lower than last year's number.

To take full advantage of its R&D capabilities in the field of motherboard
technology, Legend set up a printed circuit board assembling design centre
to provide design and technological support for its full range of motherboard
products.
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Legend constantly urges its people to try new
approaches in order to both create the driving forces
for growth and stay competitive. By developing new
technologies and leveraging them to stimulate new
innovations, Legend is able to both quickly
understand customers’ needs and offer complete
and cutting-edge solutions to them.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B eI
SUMMAR'SED 2003 2002 2002
FINANCIAL RESULTS Aotual Proforma
LEHE
iE $'000
BT BEETT BT
Turnover BEE 20,233,290 20,853,254 19,267,384
EBITDA BRFIE - BB
e REEm
Fak sl 1,174,720 1,008,938 972,580
Profit attributable to shareholders before Mk EREAEE
gain/loss on disposal of investments FR B T 1,043,954 880,660 862,217
Profit attributable to shareholders IR (S R 1,017,152 1,044,800 1,026,457
Dividend per share (HK cents): Bl GEALD -
- interim dividend —FREERE 1.8 1.5 1.5
- proposed final dividend —RRRER R 3.0 3.6 36
- proposed special dividend —EURSRIRE 5.2 - -
Earnings per share (HK cents): ShaF L)
- basic —&EXK 13.55 13.86 13.61
- fully diluted —2HEEE 13.54 13.79 13.55

Compared to the proforma result from last year, the Group recorded an
increase of 5.0% in turnover to HK$20,233 million and the gross profit margin
increased from 13.70% to 14.82%. As the gross prcfit of the Group continued
to improve and the management adopted effective control on the operating
cost, EBITDA increased by 16.4% (compared to 2002 actual figures) or
20.8% (compared to 2002 proforma figures) to HK$1,175 million,
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Profit attributable to shareholders for the year reached HK$1,017 million,
the basic earnings per share was 13.55 HK cents; fully diluted earnings per
share was 13.54 HK cents. Excluding the effect of the losses/gains on
disposal of investments, the profit attributable to shareholders increased by
HK$163 million (compared to 2002 actual figures) or HK$182 million
(compared to 2002 proforma figures) to HK$1,044 million, representing an

FAMBRREERFEEE1017ET - EREL
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increase of 18.5% and 21.1% respectively.

18.5%8%21.1% ©

2003 2002

TU RNOVER AN D Turnover | Contribution to Turnover | Contribution to
CONTRIBUT'ON operating Trofit e operat)i;gﬂprof;
= Jh=i T BT E &

S BN S weooo | asooo | rvoso | rsces
BT T BT BEETFIT BETT

Corporate IT business EITER 10,803,311 744,153 | 10,077,796 573,077
Consumer IT business HBITERS 6,822,633 363,527 7,400,769 234,335
Handheld device business FRREER 1,440,328 29,017 216,434 (18,906)
[T service business ITERFE 2R 183,800 (61,405) - -
Contract manufacturing business ERREEE 983,218 8,554 1,533,864 147,901
Others Efb - - 1,624,391 (14,942)
Amortisation of goodwill EE - (7,463) - -

{Losses)/Gains on disposals HEREZ

of investments (E1B) /U 2k - (26,802) - 164,240
Total & 20,233,290 1,049,581 20,853,254 1,085,705
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During the year, sales of servers and notebook computers increased and
application solutions to small and medium sized enterprises were further
expanded. The turnover of corporate IT business recorded an increase of
7.2% and the profit contribution increased by 29.9%.

Although the turnover of consumer IT business dropped by 7.8%, the profit
contribution showed an increase of 55.1% due to an improved margin.

The Group launched the mobile handset business during the year, turnover
in handheld device business saw a 5.7 times increase over last year's figure.
The contribution also turned from a loss of HK$19 miliion to a profit of HK$23
million.

During the year, the Group acquired the IT service business from China
Weal Business Machinery Co. Ltd. and further expanded the scope of IT
service business. For the year, the IT service business recorded a turnover
of HK$184 million and a loss of HK$61 million.

Due to a sluggish motherboard market and the disposal of the printed circuit
board business by the Group in January 2002, the turnover of contract
manufacturing business decreased by 35.9% and the profit contribution
dropped to HK$9 million.

Other businesses of last year mainly represented the results from Digital
China Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries ("DCHL Group”) and the Internet
business. The DCHL Group was spun off from the Group in June 2001 and
the Internet business was shifted to a jointly controlled entity in October
2001.
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Losses on Disposals of investments

The Group recorded a net loss on disposal of investments of HK$27 million
during the year. The loss was mainly caused by disposal of Yestock Limited,
an associated company, which amounted to HK$34 million while the sales
of investment securities recorded a gain of HK$7 million.

Taxation

The Group's effective tax rate for the year was 2.53% and for the year 2002
was 2.13%. The Group will continue to adopt effective tax planning strategies
for the operation in the future.

Dividends

The Group has maintained a consistent dividend policy. The interim dividend
paid during the year was 1.8 HK cents per share for a total amount of HK$135
million and the final dividend is proposed to be 3.0 HK cents per share for a
total amount of HK$224 million. After considering the Group's cash position
and the needs for business development, the Directors also proposed a special
dividend of 5.2 HK cents per share for this year for a total of HK$388 million.

Significant Investments and Acquisitions

During the year, the Group invested HK$295 million in fixed assets and
construction-in-progress which were mainly located in Chinese mainiand.
The Group also spent approximately HK$394 million for investments mainly
connected with the expansion of handheld device business and IT service
business, etc.

In the coming year, the Group expects to spend approximately HK$1 billion
for capital expenditure for the development of new businesses, research
and development and other general purpose capital expenditure. The funding
is expected to be generated from its existing business.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st March 2003, total assets of the Group was HK$6,756 million
which was composed of shareholders’ fund of HK$4,189 million, minority
interests of HK$6Q million and current liabilities of HK$2,507 million. The
current ratio of the Group was 2.1.

The Group had a solid financial position and maintained steady cash flow
from its operating activities. As at 31st March 2003, cash and bank balances
of the Group were HK$2,808 million. The balances consisted of about 35%
in Hong Kong dollars, 38.5% in US dollars, 26% in Renminbi and 0.5% in
other currencies.

Although the Group has been in a very strong cash position, credit facilities
have nevertheless been put in place for contingency purposes. As
at 31st March 2003, the Group’s total available credit facilities amounted 1o
HK$2,620 million, of which HK$938 million was in trade line, HK$720 miliion
was in short term and revolving money market facilities and HK$962 million
was in foreign exchange contract. As at 31st March 2003, the facility drawn
down was HK$414 million bills payable and the foreign exchange contracts
used was HK$46 million.

There was no outstanding bank loan as at 31st March 2003 and there were
no assets held under finance lease during the year and at the year end.

The Group consistently adopted a hedging policy for business transactions
to minimise the risk of fluctuation from exchange rates. Foreign currency
exposures were mainly the trade receivables from the business in Europe.
As at 31st March 2003, the Group had total outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts and currency swaps amounting to HK$46 million.
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31st March 20083.

Employees
As at 31st March 2003, the Group had a total 9,705 employees, 9,572 of
whom were employed in Chinese mainland and 133 were employed in Hong

Kong and overseas.

The Group implemented remuneration policy, discretionary bonus program,
and share option scheme, which are determined according to the
performance of the Group and individual employee. In order to improve the
quality of the staff, the Group provides job rotation, in-house training and
external training courses to the staff. The Group also provides benefits such
as insurance, medical and retirement contribution funds. These policies are
reviewed regularly to ensure they remain competitive and appropriate.
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Listening to our customers patiently and carefully,
Legend can firmly understand their needs and offer
comprehensive solutions. As a result, Legend
wins excellent reputation by not only adding
significant values to our customers, but also
exceeds their expectations.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

China’s economy shows strong fundamentals in 2003. The Chinese
government is placing great emphasis on informatisation, and its active fiscal
policy will foster further growth in the IT market. And with personnetf changes
within the government now completed, government purchases are expected
to continue to stimulate the corporate IT market. Although the outbreak of
SARS may cause short-term disruption in certain Chinese provinces and cities,
once the situation is brought under control the corporate and consumer
markets should soon return to normal.

In order to maintain sustainable long-term growth in the future, the Group will
pursue the strategy of “Three-tier Business”. The first tier is the core business,
including commercial and consumer desktops. The second tier is the growth
business, including notebooks, servers, mobile handsets, perioheral equipment,
network security and digital products. The third tier is the seed business, including
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Since the Chinese government began actively promoting e-
education in 2000, most educational institutions around the
country have reacted positively. Legend'’s existing strong
positioning in the education sector has helped it acquire
numerous orders for e-education applications. One successful example was a
contract concluded with Anhui province worth over RMB100 million.

The Anhui Education Department commissioned Legend and its largest agent in Anhui,
Hefei Aniian Computer Co., Ltd. (“Anlian”) to establish 510 e-classrooms in the province,
providing 30,000 desktop computers, 510 servers, and 510 sets of “Qitian Parasaga e-
classroom Software”.

Winning this contract owed much to Legend’s ability to provide sophisticated classroom
network solutions, some of which were jaintly developed by Legend and Anlian. Legend's
excellent channel management also created strong customer confidence in its ability to
successfully implement the project. And Legend’s extensive network of authorised
maintenance centres spread across Anhui province was a guarantee to speedy and
refiable maintenance service.

With Legend’s help, Anfian successfully borrowed the capital required for the project from
International Far Eastern Leasing Co., Ltd. The project has not only set a new mode! for
the “Schao! Link” project, it also has created a new sales approach. The success and
significance of this project carried beyond the financial gains for the Group.
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IT service, high performance server and storage products. Through setting different
key performance benchmarks for the three businesses, the Group effectively
allocates its resources by matching business cbjectives with performance review
and incentive programs. The Group expects that the growth business and the
seed business to develop rapidly in mid-term and long-term respectively and
gradually transform into core businass and generate stable growth.

Legend has initiated a number of strategies and targets for the coming
year. Apart from maintaining profit growth, the Group plans to accelerate its
business development. It will also continue to pursue its transformation
strategy, strengthen its ability to provide quality professional services and
speed up the pace of its technological innovations.

A number of research institutions believe that the rate of development in China
corporate IT market will accelerate and lead to a unit shipment growth of around
20% in 2003. The Group expects that demand for IT in the education and
government sectors in particular will maintain high growth, given the Chinese
government's extensive investment in major IT projects (e.g. its 12 "Galden Series”
projects) and e-government facilities, and the continued investment in IT by
educational institutions. Telecommunications and insurance industries are
increasing their IT investments to stay competitive and, thus will stimulate
corporate demand. The Group is optimistic that it will see strong growth in the
China’s overall corporate IT market during 2003.

The Group expects the promotion of informatisation in government, education
and other industries to stimulate higher demand for servers. Legend’s
“Deepcomp 2600", making use of advanced Collaboration Applications
technology, is expected to stimulate growth in unit shipment and improve gross
profit in the high-end commercial server arena. The notebook market should
also perform well in the coming year, as manufacturing costs come down,
systems improve, and wireless applications become more popular, Competition
will be focused on a company’s ability to understand customer needs and on
the extent of its service capabilities. Legend will go extra miles in promoting
sales through solutions and services in 2003, at the same time strengthening
its customer relations and bolstering its market influence.

Rapid growth in the Chinese economy has speeded up the pace of urbanisation,
in turn leading to a surge in demand for home PCs in newly emerging cities.
Cormputer use in major cities has also increased in the past few years, and urban
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consumers are now increasingly looking to purchase a second computer. Legend
expects the home PC market to continue its double-digit growth into 2003. The
Chingse government’s intensive promotion of computer education in secondary
and primary schocls over the past two years is leading to a rapid increase in
demand for home PCs by students. Chinese consumers are also showing strong
interest in digital products, and in particular digital cameras, a trend that should
also stimulate consumer demand for computers. Legend’s successful business
framework for digital arena helps to stimulate the sales of PCs. Furthermore, a
number of recent developments in the market have benefited sales of branded
PCs. The Chinese government’s commitment to crack down on tax invasion
and strengthen the system for collecting value-added tax, for example, has
prompted an increased tendency to opt for branded computers rather than white
box computers. To prepare for future competition and cater for second purchases
and the specific “Learner” market segment, Legend plans to tailor specific product
lines, services and marketing activities to related markets.

Consumers recently have sent out strong purchasing signals in the digital
products arena, especially for digital cameras. Analysts estimate that sales of
digital cameras in China will double year on year, with shipment reaching four
million units in 2005. Leveraging its strong competitive edge in the consumer
market, Legend expects to boost sales of its digital cameras considerably.

Mobile handset users will also continue to grow in 2003. Mobile handsets
with colour screen and multimedia messaging service (MMS) will drive
consumer demand, helping sales to maintain double-digit growth. The Group
will continue to place strong emphasis on developing its mobile handset
business, which is forging increasingly powerful synergies with Legend’s
existing businesses. In the coming year, the Group'’s major goals for its mobile
handset business are to expand its existing product lines, strengthen existing
channels for mobile handset sales, enlarge the scale of its business and build
up its core competitiveness, thus ensuring healthy long-term development.

Legend will develop its handset business with four major design trends in mind.
It will pay great attention to: (1) trendy lcok with folder style, light and thin;
(2) colour application supporting MMS; (3) entertainment feature with camera
or polyphonic ring tones; and (4) m-commerce application that allows data
processing anytime anywhere. These developments will bring the innovative
and energstic nature of Legend’s mobile handset business to the spotlight,
complementing its existing standards of high quality and advanced technology.
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The handheld device market is expected to maintain healthy growth next
year, with pocket PCs and wireless terminals being the main market drivers.
Legend will further expand existing product lines and aggressively explore
wireless applications in 2003.

The IT service market for China's telecom industry has very bright prospects.
Data from various research institutions indicate that market value is expected
to reach US$6 billion in 2003 and a CAGR of 20% to 30% over the next five
years. Market revenue is expected to reach US$15 billion in 2007, with
telecommunications, finance, government and manufacturing sectors
accounting for 70% of the market.

Legend is committed to enhancing its abllity to provide guality professional
services in future. Building on its “Three-horizontal and Four-vertical” strategic
framework, the Group will continue to drive rapid expansion through
acquisitions. To meet the strong informatisation demands of the market,
Legend has formed partnership with Oracle and Sun Microsystems to jointly
launch informatisation management solutions for growing enterprises. Legend
has already established a significant competitive edge in the network security
business, and is aiming to accelerate its business growth in this area. Its
emerging IT service business will focus in the coming year on reinforcing its
core competence, improving its project management and building an elite
human resources system and corporate culture as required by the nature of
service business.

The worldwide matherboard business looks set to encounter further stern
challenges in 2003. Large manufacturers will continue to place intense
pressure on smaller ones, both in terms of market share and pricing. In the
face of such intense market competition, Legend is developing new and diverse
business operations to consolidate its position in the motherboard market.

In conclusion, although China’s IT industry still faces a number of challenges in
the coming vear, Legend’s management is confident about the Group’s
prospects, particularly as it proceeds in implementing its strategy of technological
innovation and service transformation. The Group's thorough understanding of
the China market and its excellent management and execution capabilities wil
help it capture both new and existing market opportunities, bringing sustainable
healthy returns to its shareholders.
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Legend has committed itself to constantly
upgrading products for customers through
integrating cutting-edge technologies with highly
user-friendly systems and designs. Aiming for
simplicity, Legend works to provide clear, efficient
services that will bring customers a sense of ease

and convenience, whether at the level of pre-sales
consultation, purchasing, use of the IT equipment,
or after-sales services.
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China’s IT market growth was not yet fully back on track last year, at a time
when Legend had just begun to expand its mobile handset and [T service
businesses. Investors were concerned about the growth of the Group's core
computer business, the development of its new businesses and the
implementation of its technological innovation and service transformation
strategies. Fully understanding the concerns and needs of investors, the
Group has particularly focused on addressing these potential concerns in
its investor relations work last year.

The Group took a number of approaches to communicate to the investment
community, including meetings with investors, attending investor
conferences, organising audio conferences and roadshows. The Group
outlined the growth momentum of China’s consumer and commercial PC
markets, explained how Legend was maintaining its competitive edge,
analysed the growth potential of China's mobile handset and IT service
markets, and indicated the competitive advantages enjoyed by local Chinese
brands in the China market. Apart from the traditional ways of
communications, the Group also gave analysts the first-hand experience to
witness the outcome of its work in technological innovation, through
participation in the five-day “Legend World 2002”.

Last year, the Group participated in 10 investor forums organised by
securities companies, organised three roadshows in Hong Kong, two
overseas roadshows, 17 audio conferences, 280 meetings with investors
and 31 visits to production plants, showrooms, and call centres. Legend
continued to stay in touch with individual and overseas investors through its
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investor website and Quamnet (http://www.quamnet.com), a well known
financial website in Hong Kong. During the year, the Group improved its
investor website by making modifications to webpage design, textual content
and arrangement, all designed to better meet users’ needs. Following
Legend’s change of English brand name, the domain name of its English-

language investor website was also changed to http://www.lenovo.com.

Legend's enhancement of investor relations and corporate governance led
the Group to receive high recognition from investors. In Asiamoney’s 2002
investor poli, Legend was voted “Best Managed Company in China”, as well
as “Best Investor Relations”, “Best Company Strategies”, “Best Financial
Management”, “Best Operational Efficiencies”, “Best Interests for Minority
Shareholders”, “Most Accessible Top Management” and "Best
Communications with Shareholders/Investors”. In this year’'s FinanceAsia
annual awards held in April, Legend was also ranked first in the “Best Investor
Relations” and “Best Corporate Governance” categories.

The Group greatly appreciates the positive feedback on its investor relations
work. In the future, Legend will continue to seek out new ways to enhance
investors’ understanding of the Group’s businesses, operations, and its
corporate culture. Legend continually welcomes suggestions from investors,
and invites them to contact the Group’s Corporate Marketing Department.
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ABN AMRO Asia Ltd
ARESFTMNERIT
Michele Mak 522
michele.mak@nhk.abnamro.com
T: (852) 2700-5439

F: (852) 2700-5816

Bear Stearns Asia Ltd
EENEEMNERLT
Gurinder Kalra
gkalra@bear.com

T: (852) 2593-2742

F: (852) 2593-2873

BNP Paribas Peregrine
Securities Limitd
ZEEREEYRHERAT
Gideon Lo B %
gideon.lo@peregrine.bnpparibas.
com

T: (852) 2825-1188

F: (852) 2845-2232

BOCI

IR ERR

Frank Lai BE18
frank.lai@bocigroup.com

T: (86-21) 6860-4866 ext 8516
F: (86-21) 5877-4179

Cazenove Asia Ltd
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Terrence Quah #;1E8
terrence.quah@cazenove.com
T: (852) 2526-4211

F: (852) 2868-1411

CLSA Limited
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Frank Shi & 73
frank.shi@clsa.com
T: {852) 2600-8888
F. (852) 2501-0903
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Core Pacific-Yamaichi
International (H.K.) Ltd
REL-ER(EBERLF
Mona Chung 28 %
mona.chung@cpy.com.hk

T: (852) 2826-0008

F: (852) 2536-9916

CSC Securities (HK) Limited
BERE (BER)ERLT
Kenneth Lau BI5f XX
kenneth_lau@e-capital.com.hk
T: (852) 2105-1162

F: (852) 2105-1196

DBS Vickers (Hong Kong)
Limited

DBS BSE (FB) ARLT
Joseph Ho A%
joseph_ho@hk.dbsvickers.com
T: (852) 2820-4685

F: (852) 2521-1812

Deutsche Bank
Lim Fung Ee k5 &
fung-ee.lim@db.com
T: (852) 2203-6251
F: (852) 2203-6921

G.K. Goh Securities (H.K.)
Limited
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Alan Wong
wong.alan@gkgoh.com

T: (852) 2532-1156

F: (852) 2537-1547

Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.
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=N
Henry King € X1 /
Erica Poon & 18
henry king@gs.com /
erica.poon@gs.com
T: (886-2) 2730-4181 /

(886-2) 2730-4188
F: (886-2) 2730-4004

HSBC Securities (Asia) Ltd
BB (EMNBRL2T
Jeannie Cheung & B
jeanniecheung@hsbc.com.hk
T: (852) 2996-6608

F: (852) 2596-0200

ING Securities Limited
Paul Snelgrove
paul.snelgrove@asia.ing.com
T: (852) 2913-8030

F:(852) 2810-6127

J.P. Morgan Securities

(Asia Pacific) Limited
BEXBERS (EX)ERLT
Johnny Chan & 7742
johnny.lk.chan@jpmorgan.com
T: (852) 2800-8533

F: (852) 2847-3324

Kim Eng Securities (HK) Ltd
Dennis Lam #-F 2
dlam@kimeng.com.hk

T:(852) 2810-7755

F: (852) 2877-0104

Lehman Brothers
REVBER

Paul Meyer {712
paul.meyer@lehman.com
T: (886-2) 8723-1632

F: (886-2) 8723-1622

Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific)
Limited

EMEETAE

Tien Yu Sieh $tiniE
tienyu_sieh@hk.ml.com

T: (852) 2536-3025

F: (852) 2536-3435

Morgan Stanley
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Viktor Ma §T&
viktor.ma@morganstanley.com
T: (852) 2848-5803

F: (852) 2537-1701

Nomura International
(Hong Kong) Limited
FNER (BB BRAT
Theodore Teo SRE#Z
theodore.teo@hk.nomura.com
T: (852) 2536-1240

F: (852) 2536-1820

SBI E2-Capital Research Ltd
BESERRBRBERLT
Clement Wong F 4288
clementwong@softhank.com.hk
T: (852) 2533-3713

F: (852) 2533-3733

Smith Barney

Peh Chong Ghee B3 1P 1E /

Kirk Yang 15 FE A

chong.ghee peh@citigroup.com /
kirk.yang@citigroup.com

T: (852) 2501-2748

F: (852) 2521-5350

Standard & Poor’s

Equity Research
BEEEEESWR

David So &% E
david_so@standardandpoaors.
com

T: (852) 2532-8066

F: (852) 2532-8039

UBS Warburg
HEER

Jog Zhang R1LE
joe.zhang@ubsw.com
T: (852) 2971-6107
F. (852) 2971-8542

UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong)
Limited
REHE(EBERAT
Lau Tak Hung, Eric Bl
eric.lau@uobkayhian.com.hk
T: (852) 2236-6794

F: (852) 2845-1655
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The directors submit their report togsther with the audited accounts
of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2003.

Principal business and geographical anaiysis of
operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in the Subsidiaries
section on pages 115 to 118.

Details of the analyses of the Group's turnover, revenue and segment
information for the year by principal businesses and geographical
locations are set out in Note 3 to the accounts.

Results and appropriations
The results for the year are set out in the consolidated profit and

loss account on page 77.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31st March
2008 are set out in the balance sheets on pages 78 and 79.

The consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year are set out in
the statement on pages 80 and 81.

An interim dividend of 1.8 HK cents per share, amounting to a total
of about HK$135 million, was paid to shareholders during the year
(2002: 1.5 HK cents).
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Resuits and appropriations continved

The directors recommended a payment of a final dividend of 3 HK
cents per share (2002: 3.6 HK cents). Taking into consideration of
the Group’s cash position and the needs for business development,
the directors also recommended a payment of a special dividend of
5.2 HK cents per share (2002: nil}. These proposed dividends
together with the interim dividend paid amount to a total of about
HK$747 million. Subject to shareholders' approval at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, the final dividend and special dividend will
be payable on or before 13th August 2003 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 15th
July 2003.

The Register of Members will be closed from Thursday, 10th July
2003 to Tuesday, 15th July 2003, both dates inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
these proposed dividends, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Wednesday, 9th July 2003.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group as at 31st March 2003 and for the last four financial
years is set cut on page 144.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company are set
out in Note 27 to the accounts.

Distributable reserves

As at 31st March 20083, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for dividend distribution amounted to HK$1,474,240,000
(2002: HK$863,305,000).
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Bank loans
There was no outstanding bank loan as at 31st March 2003.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$1,036,000 (2002: HK$298,019).

Tangible fixed assets
Details of the movements in tangible fixed assets of the Group and
the Company are set out in Note 14 to the accounts.

Share capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 25 to the accounts.

Subsidiaries, jointly controlied entities and
associated companies

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, jointly controfled
entities and associated companies as at 31st March 2003 are set
out in Notes 16, 17 and 18 to the accounts respectively.

Management contracis

No contracts conceming the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

During the year, the Group sold less than 30% of its goods and
services to its five largest customers. The percentages of purchases
for the year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

20%
43%

The largest supplier
Five largest suppliers combined

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers.
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Share options

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 25th
March 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (“New Option Scheme”)
and the termination of the old share option scheme (“Old Option
Scheme™). Despite the fact that no further options may be granted
under the Old Option Scheme, its all other provisions will remain in
force to govern the exercise of all the options previously granted.

1. Old Option Scheme

The Old Option Scheme was adopted on 18th January 1994
and was terminated on 26th April 2002. The Old Option
Scheme was designed to provide qualified employees with
appropriate incentives linked to share ownership. Only
employees, including directors, of the Group could participate
in the Old Option Scheme. Total number of options must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company. The
maximum entitlement of any individual participant thereunder
must not exceed 2.5% of the shares in issue. The exercise
price for options was determined based on not less than 80%
of the average closing price of the shares for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant. Options granted
were exercisable at any time during a period of 10 years.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
which may be issued on the exercise of the outstanding options
granted thereunder is 292,336,000 shares, representing
approximately 3.9% of the issued share capital of the Company.

2. New Option Scheme
(a) Purpose
The New Option Scheme was effective on 26th April 2002,
it serves as a way of providing incentives to and attracting
qualified participants for better performance of the Group
by allowing them to share increases in the value of the
Company.
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Share coptions continued
2. New Option Scheme continved

(o)

{c)

Qualified participants

1. (i) any employee or officer, executive or non-
executive director (or persons proposed o be
appointed as such) of the Group;

(iy ~any consultant, professional or other adviser
to the Group;

(iy any director, executive and senior officer of any
associated company of the Company; and

(iv) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the
directors the beneficiary (or in case of
discretionary trust, the discretionary objects)
of which include any of the above-mentioned
persons; and

2. () any customer, supplier, agent, partner,
distributor, professional or other advisers of,
or consultants or contractors to, the Group;
and

(i)  the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the
directors the beneficiary (or in case of
discretionary trust, the discretionary objects)
of which include any of the above-mentioned

persons,

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares available for issue under
the New Option Scheme is 750,803,810, representing
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.
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Share OptﬂOHS continued

2.

New Option Scheme continued

(@

(e)

Maximum entitiement of each qualified participant

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted to each gualified
participant (including both exercised and cutstanding
cptions} in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting of the Company.

Share options to be granted to a director or chief executive
of the Company or any of their respective associates are
subject to approval by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any grant of share
options to an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, when
aggregated with all share options (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) already granted to any of them
during the 12-month period up to the date of grant, in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
and with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000,
is subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
of the Company.

Timing for exercise of options

In respect of any particular option, the directors may in
their absolute discretion determine the period within which
an option may be exercised provided that such period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date upon
which the option is deemed to be accepted by the
grantee. Option will then lapse to the extent not exercised
during the option pericd.
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Share options continved
2.  New Option Scheme continued

®

©

()

Acceptance of offers

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted when the duplicate coffer letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee shall
have been received by the Company on or before the
last day for acceptance as set out in the offer letter.

Basis for determination of exercise price

The exercise price must be no less than the highest of: (i}
the closing price of the shares on the date of grant; {ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares for the 5
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; or
(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Life of the scheme

The New Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 26th April 2002, the date on which
it is deemed to take effect in accordance with its terms.
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Share options continued
3. Outstanding options
Particulars of the outstanding options are as follows:

BR

3.

B
RITENER

#

RITEREREFBOT -

Exercise
Options held Options ~ Options  Options held at  price per
at 1st April 2002 granted exercised 31st March 2003 share
RZBBZE duingyear duingyear  R-2BZE FRTEE Exercise
MA-B RERRE RERFTE  ZE=+-A HKS  Grant date period
FENBRE NERE NBRE  BROBRE B BERH fTEEH
0ld Option Scheme EERENg
Director Ez
Mr Liu Chuanzh Hlr vt 2,250,000 - - 2050000 2876 31.82001 3182001 -
30.8.2011
Mr Yang Yuanging BrBgs 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 4072 16.42001  16.4.2001 -
16.4.2011
2,250,000 - - 2,250,000 2.876 3182001 31.8.2001-
30.8.2011
Ms Ma Xuezheng SEX 2,920,000 - - 2,920,000 4,072 1642001 16.4.2001 -
15.4.2011
1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 2.876 3182001 31.8.2001 -
30.8.2011
Continuous contract BRAaNES 7,712,000 - - 7,712,000 4038 28.1.2000  28.1.2000-
employees 27.1.2010
127,162,000 - - 127,162,000 4.312 1512001 15.1.2001 -
14.1.2011
26,630,000 - - 26,630,000 4072 16.42001  16.4.2001 -
15.4.2011
832,000 - - 832,000 2.904 2982001 29.8.2001-
28.8.2011
115,636,000 - 656,000 114,980,000 2.876 31.82001  31.8.2001 -

30.8.201




Share options continued
3. Outstanding options continved

Options hetd Options
at 1st April 2002 granted

3.

Options
exercised

R=%2-f duringyear during year
BA-A REAEL REARTE

RITENBRE &
Exercise
Options held at  price per
31st March 2003 share
R-B2=F ERAKEE Exercise
ZA=+-R HKS  Grant date period

GRREBRE HBRE HBRE  SA0BRE A% RiHRE TEHRE
New Option Scheme FERERE
Continuous contract REANESR - 35,026,000 - 35,026,000 2435 10102002 10.10.2002 -
employees 9.10.2012
Other participants ftsRz - 17,780,000 - 17,780,000 243 10102002 10.10.2002-
9.10.2012
Notes: HsE

(i) In respect of share options granted on 10th October 2002,
the closing price of the shares immediately before the date
on which the options were granted was HK$2.325.

(i)  Weighted average closing price of shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised by continuous

contract employees was HK$3.281.

(i)  No share options were cancelled or lapsed during the year.

() HBE_ZET-_E+ATEELNERE BRHER
BEEFLBHMWHEEB¥23255T -

(i) FEESAESOERRITENERRE  ROEEET
£ E BRI NNET R TEAEES.2817T -

(i)  AFER OREBEREREHIER
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Share options continved

4.

Valuation of share options

The share options granted are not recognised in the accounts
until they are exercised. The directors consider that it is not
appropriate to value the share options on the ground that
certain crucial factors for such valuation are variables which
cannot be reasonably determined at this stage. Any valuation
of the share options based on speculative assumptions in
respect of such variables would not be meaningful and the
results thereof may be misleading to the shareholders. Thus, it
is more appropriate to disclose only the market price and
exercise price.

Adoption of new accounting standard

Due to the adoption of Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice No. 34 (revised) “Employee benefits” during the year,
disclosures relating to the share option schemes for the
employees of the Company are also set out in Note 26 to the
accounts.

Purchase, sale cr redemption cf the Company’s
listed securities
During the year, the Company purchased 31,330,000 shares of

HK$0.025 each in the capital of the Company at prices ranging

from HK$2.225 to HK$2.875 per share on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange of Hong Kong"). Such

purchases involved a total cash outlay of approximately

HK$79,399,000 and were for the purpose of enhancing retumns on

equity.

BRE o

4. BREMGE
BHEMEREESEAFHTEREREERNER - E2
ERAEEBRESEEN LEEERAREA RN

TSRS RE AN BRENENEIRELS
5 MASRTRUBRRERRE Bt REE
REBRENTERITEE -

5. ERMFEFER
ERLEERERT N EBLERFEI45% (B
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88 5131,330,000x B IR EE B 0,025 T R A TR
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Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities continues

BE HERERAQRFNLTES o

Aggregate

Number of consideration

shares Highest price Lowest price  paid (including

repurchased per share per share expenses)

HEx

Month/Year 4/ A% BERE BRESE BREEE (BIEBA)
HK$ HKS HK$’'000

B A BETRE

June 2002 ZEEZFRR 2,000,000 2.875 2.875 5,765
October 2002 —ET-&+A 4,810,000 2.325 2.225 10,941
March 2003 —ETE=F=A 24,520,000 2.600 2.400 62,693
31,330,000 79,398

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly, the issued
share capital was reduced by the nominal value thereof, The premium
payable on repurchase was charged against the retained earnings
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the vear.

EQEBNROEEEE BETRFAER IR - BE
BnOEMRED EEARBRE SN TR -

P BB -

RLRSAETARBATNEA—HRERE

B - HERBERLRMEE LHES -
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Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors
Mr Liu Chuanzhi

Mr Yang Yuanging
Ms Ma Xuezheng

Non-executive director
Mr Zeng Maachao

Independent non-executive directors

Mr Wong Wai Ming

Professor Woo Chia-Wei

Mr Ting Lee Sen (appointed on 27th February 2003)

In accordance with Articles 92 and 101 of the Company's Articles
of Asscciation, Mr Yang Yuanging, Professor Woo Chia-Wei and Mr
Ting Lee Sen retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Biography of directors and senior management
Executive directors

Mr Liu Chuanzhi, aged 58, is the Chairman of the Group. He has
been responsible for the strategic planning and management of the
Group since its establishment and has over 33 years of experience
in the computer field. He graduated in 1866 from the Department of
Radar Communications, Xian Military Communications Engineering
College of China. He received the first prize of the Second National
Technology Entrepreneurs Gold Award in 1990. He was awarded
Model of National Work Force and Man of Reform in China, both in
1995, and Ten Most Influential Men of the Commercial Sector in
China in 1996. He has been re-appointed as Vice Chairman of All-
China Federation of Industry & Commerce in 2002 and has been
holding the office since 1997. He was appointed as a Representative
of the Ninth National People’s Congress of the PRC in 1988 and re-
appointed as a Representative of the Tenth National People’s
Congress of the PRC in 2003. Mr Liu was selected by Fortune
magazine as one of the runners-up of Asia’s Businessman of the
year in 1998. He was also selected by Business Week magazine as
one of the Stars of Asia for 2000. In 2001, he was selected by Time
magazine as one of the Twenty-five Most Influential Global
Executives.,

Mr Yang Yuanging, aged 38, is the Vice Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group with responsibility for the overall
business and operation of the Group. He graduated from the
Department of Computer Science, University of Science and
Technology of China ("USTC”) in 1989 with a Master degree. He is
also a member of National Youth Committees and a Professor of
USTC. He was awarded Ten Most Outstanding Youth of Beijjing in
1998 and won the Medal of 5.4 Youth in China in 1899, which is the
highest honour given to youth by the Chinese government. He was
selected by Business Week magazine as one of the Stars of Asia in
the years of 1999 and 2001. Mr Yang is a non-executive director of
Beijing Ufsoft Co., Ltd, which is engaged in software development
and manufacturing.
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Biography of directors and senior management continued
Executive directors continued

Ms Ma Xuezheng, aged 50, is the Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. She is responsible for strategic
investment, finance and treasury management, corporate marketing,
listing affairs, overseas business development and motherboard
business of the Group. She graduated from Capital Normal University
in 1876 with a Bachelor of Arts degree. She has over 26 years of

experience in financial and executive management.

Non-executive director

Mr Zeng Maochao, aged 70, is a non-executive director of the Group.
He graduated from the Department of Electrical Engineering, Shanghai
Jiao Tong University in 1957. He was the Director and Professor of the
Institute of Computing Technology of the Chinese Academy of Sciences.
He has over 46 years of experience in the computer field. Mr Zeng is an
executive director of Digital China Holdings Limited, a forrmer wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company which was spun-off from the Group
for separate listing on 1st June 2001.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr Wong Wai Ming, aged 45, is the Chief Executive Officer of Global
China Group Holdings Limited. He is a chartered accountant and
has extensive knowledge and experience in investment banking.

Professor Woo Chia-Wei, aged 65, is Senior Advisor to The Shui
On Group. He is President Emeritus and University Professor
Emeritus of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
He serves on the HKSAR’s Commissicn on Strategic Development
and Council of Advisors on Innovation and Technology and also the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conferences.
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Biography of directors and senior management continued
Independent non-executive directors continved

Mr Ting Lee Sen, aged 60, is Advisory Director of W.R. Hambrecht
Co. and Board Director of APL Logistics Co. He obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the Oregon State
University in 1965. He attended graduate studies in the same field
at Stanford University and is a graduate of the Standford Executive
Program. He was a former corporate vice president of Hewlett-
Packard Company where he waorked for more than thirty years. He

has extensive knowledge and experience in IT industry.

Senior Vice President

Mr Liu Jun, aged 34, is the Senior Vice President of the Group. He
is responsible for operation systems (purchasing, manufacturing,
quality assurance and business affairs) and consumer IT business.
Mr Liu graduated in 1993 from the Department of Automation,
Tsinghua University with a Bachelor of Engineering degree, and
thereafter joined the Group. Mr Liu has attained outstanding
achievement in computer sales and has extensive experience in
research, development and marketing of IT products.

Mr Yu Bing, aged 37, is the Senior Vice President of the Group. He
is responsible for the IT service business. Mr Yu graduated in 1988
with a Bachelor of Science degree from the Department of
Automation, University of Science and Technology of Beijing. He
joined the Group in 1980 and has engaged in marketing and sales
for 5 years from 1996. He has extensive experience in sales and

marketing.

Mr Qiao Song, aged 35, is the Senior Vice President of the Group.
He is responsible for the corporate IT business. Mr Qiao graduated
in 1991 with a Bachelor of Engineering degree from the Department
of Computer Science and Technology, Tsinghua University. He joined
the Group in 1991 and has extensive experience in strategic, product
development, sales and marketing, supply chain and procurement

logistic management.
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Biography of directors and senior management continued
Senior Vice President continved

Ms Wang Xiaoyan, aged 41, is the Senior Vice President of the
Group. She is responsible for information technology development
as well as financial control, administration and logistics functions.
Ms Wang graduated in 1988 with a Master degree in Engineering
from Beijing Institute of Technology. She joined the Group in 1994
and has extensive experience in finance and administration.

Mr He Zhigiang, aged 40, researcher, is the Senior Vice President
of the Group and the Managing Director of Legend Corporate
Research and Development. He is responsible for corporate research
and development and product-chain management. He graduated
with a Master degree in Computer Sciences from the Institute of
Computing Technology of the Chinese Academy of Sciences and
has 17 years of experience in the research and development of
computer products. He joined the Group in 1986.

Vice President

(The followings are in alphabetical order)

Mr Chen Shaopeng, aged 34, is the Vice President of the Group
and is responsible for the commercial desktop PC business. He
graduated from Beijing Technology and Business University (formerly
known as Beijing Institute of Light Industry) with a Bachelor degree
in Computer Science and has over 10 years of experience in PC
business and management. He joined the Group in 1983.

Mr Cheung Wing Chung, Anders, aged 39, is the Vice President
of the Group and is responsible for strategic investment project
management. He joined the Group in 1988 and holds a MBA degree
from Kellogg (Northwestern University) - Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He has over 14 years of experience in

computer marketing.

Mr Du Jianhua, aged 39, is the Vice President of the Group. He is
responsible for the overall development and management of China
regional headquarters and overseas branches. Mr Du obtained a
Master degree from Beijing Institute of Technology in 1988. He joined
the Group in 1989 and has extensive experience in regional planning
and management.
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Biography of directors and senior management continved
Vice President continued

Mr Liu Xiaolin, aged 40, is the Vice President of the Group. He is
responsible for the industry standard of collaborating application
and Internet service business. Mr Liu obtained a Master degree from
the Department of Computer Science and Technology, Tsinghua
University in 1992, He joined the Group in 1992 and has extensive
experience in business development and management.

Mr Liu Zhijun, aged 38, is the Vice President of the Group. He is
responsible for the mobile handset business. He graduated in 1989
with a Master degree in Engineering Mechanics from Dalian University
of Technology. He engaged in computer marketing when joined the
Group in 1989. Since Mr Liu took charge of handheld device business
in 2000, he obtained extensive experience of researching, producing
and marketing in this field.

Mr Lu Yan, aged 38, is the Vice President of the Group and is
responsible for consumer |T business. Mr Lu graduated in 1989
with a Master degree in Engineering from Beijing Institute of
Technology and has over 10 years of experience in project R&D
and management. He joined the Group in 1992.

Vir Ma Yue, Alex, aged 36, is the Vice President of the Group and
is responsible for [T service market development department and
Han Consulting business. Mr Ma graduated from Beijing University
in 1888 with a Bachelor of Science degree. He obtained a MBA
degree from China Europe International Business School in 2000.
Mr Ma has over 13 years’ expertience in IT and related industries.
Prior to joining the Group, he held various senior management
positions in IBM and HP China Region. He joined the Group in 2002.

Mr Meng Lin, aged 49, is the Vice President of the Group with
responsibility for Legend Chinaweal business. He graduated from
the business school of Tsinghua University in 1987 with a Master
degree in Engineering. He joined the Group in 2002 and has 10-
year demonstrated experience in system integration and services.
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Biography of directors and senior management continveo
Vice President continueo

Ms Qiao Jian, aged 35, is the Vice President of the Group with
responsibility for human resources and legal functions. She
graduated from Department of Management Science of Fudan
University in 1990 with a Bachelor degree. She joined the Group in
1990, She has 9 years of experience in corporate marketing and
branding management and has extensive experience in human
resources management.

Ms Wang Xiaochun, aged 50, is the Vice President of the Group.
She is responsible for customer service and information
management. She obtained her Master degree in Science at the
Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Sciences in 1981, She
has over 17 years of experience in management and administration.
She joined the Group in 1990.

Mr Zhang Hougi, aged 37, is the Vice President of the Group with
responsibility for the knowledge management of the Group. He
graduated from the Department of Automation, Tsinghua University
in 1992 with a Ph.D. degree in Engineering. He later received a Ph.D.
in Economics from the Institute of Fiscal and Financial Science in
1994. He is adviscr and part-time professor of Sun Yat-Sen University
Lingnan {(University) College and also a part-time professor of
University of Science and Technology of China. He has ten years of
experience in business consulting and [T service. He joined the Group
in 2002.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ interests in securities

As at 31st March 2003, according to the register maintained under
section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the
“SDI Ordinance”), the interests of each director in shares of the
Company and its associated corporations were as follows:

1. Interests in shares
(a) The Company

R R BRI

1.

g £

@ =o

7

7]

Number of shares

RBEE
Personal Family Total
interest interest interests
Name of director HEHA BARER RiEER MR
Mr Liu Chuanzhi WEERE 10,010,000 256,000 10,266,000
Mr Zeng Maochao BIRESTE 4,080,000 ~ 4,080,000
Mr Yang Yuanaing BLERE 6,200,000 ~ 6,200,000
Ms Ma Xuezheng BEEXZT 16,714,000 2,360,000 19,074,000

(b) Associated corporation (o) FEEEEE
- Digital China Holdings Limited - BMEBEREREAND
Number of shares

RBEE
Personal Family Total
interest interest interests
Name of director EEHE BAER RikiEs mER
Mr Liu Chuanzhi WEELE 1,496,000 97,600 1,593,600
Mr Zeng Maochao BIRETE 808,000 60,000 868,000
Mr Yang Yuanging HBTERE 520,000 - 520,000
Ms Ma Xuezheng BEEMELZE 1,646,400 - 1,646,400
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Directors’ interests in securities continued
2. Interests in options relating to shares of the Company

(@)

Share options granted by the Company

The interests of the directors in the share options of the
Company are detailed in the Share Options section stated
above.

Other

On 5th June 2000, BHABERIRFR D
Limited), the controlling shareholder of the Company, has

3] (Legend Holdings

granted call options to certain persons including the
following directors. They are respectively entitled (subject
to certain conditions) to acquire, and to require Legend
Holdings Limited to sell, shares of the Company, at a
price of HK$0.5325 per share during a period ending 1st
August 2007.

2. RARFARHHEBHINE
@) AREERLNRRE
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AN R IE AR AR R
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BEREE0.5325 THE AL RIRG

Number of shares

BHEE

Personal Family Total

interest interest interests

Name of director ESHR EAER RIRER R
Mr Liu Chuanzhi MEELE 6,000,000 720,000 6,720,000
Mr Zeng Macchao DIRAZE 4,000,000 600,000 4,800,000
Mr Yang Yuanging BrELLE 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Ms Ma Xuezheng BBt 4,000,000 - 4,000,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2003, none of the BEXREIN BEEHEMEALRN-TE=FZ

directors or their associates had any interests in any shares of

the Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded

by the register of the Company pursuant to the SDI Ordinance.
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Substantial interests in the share capital of the
Company

As at 31st March 2003, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance and so far
as is known to the directors, the following corporations had an
interest of 10% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

FRBRAFFHEARELR
RoTB=F=A=+-8 - REAQTRABER IS

6 EFENBEARS  UREEFA  TIHEERE
ARFRBITRAP 0% ERIRH

Percentage of

Number of shares issued share capital Note
HEBTRE

Name £8 BOEE EUE=Y g fisE

Legend Holdings Limited BEERERLF 4,322,485,971 57.8% 1

Employees’ Shareholding Society of HEERERAT
Legend Holdings Limited BIsRke 4,322,485,971 57.8%
Right Lane Limited HRERAF 1,469,311,247 19.7%
Notes: Hist

1. Direct transliteration of its Chinese company name in English is
Legend Holdings Limited.

2. Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holdings Limited is
an equity holder of Legend Holdings Limited which in turn wholly
owns Right Lane Limited and is therefore taken to be interested in
the shares held by those two companies respectively.

3. Right Lane Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Legend Holdings
Limited. Therefore, number of shares in which Right Lane Limited
is shown as being interested is part of the shares in which Legend
Holdings Limited is shown to be interested.

1. REFRXEBEHIEZERLegend Holdings Limited °

2. BEEREROSIRISKEHEHBERER NI
Bxm o MBEZERERLNZERBEAERAF - At
BETRARADNRIHRERERS B EERMERLE]
FHENBRITES -

3. FEHRAERLTABBERERARZANBAR Bt
ERBRAFFENRD - BERARREREROTRE
IriptyEh—3n -
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Retirement scheme arrangements

For the period from 1st April 1998 to 30th November 2000, the
Group provided all qualified Hong Kong employees with a defined
contribution scheme, which was established under the Cccupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. Under the rules of the scheme, all
participating employees were required to contribute 5% of their basic
monthly salary, whereas the employer’s contribution is at 5%, 7.5%
and 10% in pursuance of each participating employee’s continuous
years of service and as specified in accordance with the rules of the
scheme. The assets of the scheme are continuously held under a
provident fund managed by an independent trustee. Also, with the
implementation of the Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF”) by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
effective on 1st December 2000, the Group and employees
discontinued contributions to the scheme. Although the scheme was
frozen, the employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution with investment return after ten complete years of
service, or at an increasing scale of between 30% to 90% after
completion of three to nine years’ service. Where there are employees
who leave the Group prior to vesting fully in such contributions, the
forfeited contributions will be refunded to the Group.

Under the MPF scheme established by the Group, all gualified
employees are required to contribute 5% of their basic salary plus
commission, bonus, gratuity expensed in monetary terms (subject
to the ceiling under the requirements set out in the MPF legislation)
whereas the employer’s contribution is at 7.5% and 10% respectively
after completion of five and ten years of service.

The Group also participates in respective local municipal government
retirement schemes in the Chinese mainland whereby it is required
10 make an annual contribution of no more than 20% of three times
the monthly average salaries as set out by the local municipal
government each year. The local municipal governments undertake
1o assume the retirement benefit obligations of all retires of the
qualified employees in Chinese maintand.
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Connected transactions

The following transactions constitute connected transactions of the
Company and require disclosure in the annual report pursuant to
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Listing Rules™).

1. Pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 16th January 2002, a
subsidiary of the Company has leased from Shenzhen Legend
Science Park Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company’s
controlling shareholder, certain office premises and car parking
spaces situated at Legend Research and Development
Building, Hi-Tech Industrial Park, Shenzhen, China. The tenancy
is for a term of 46 months expiring on 15th November 2005 at
a monthly rental of RMB1,309,300, exclusive of management
fees and other outgoings. The rental was determined based
on confirmation of an independent firm of professional property
valuers of their assessment of its market rental when the
tenancy agreement was entered into.

2. Upon the setting up of a joint venture FM365.com Limited with
AQOL China Holdings LLC, Beijing Legend FM Science and
Technology Company Limited (“Legend FM”), a subsidiary of
the Company’s controlling shareholder, has agreed to provide
certain interactive services to the Group:

(a) Pursuant to a marketing agreement dated 20th November
2001, Legend FM has agreed to provide certain users of
Legend PCs with access to its online account for
distribution of interactive services provided by Legend
FM in return for account access fees determined under
the account access contract (see below).

(o) Pursuant to an account access contract dated 20th
November 2001, Legend FM has agreed to provide
account access to users of Legend PCs which have been
bundled with software licensed for use of the interactive
services provided by Legend FM. The account access
fee paid by Legend (Beijing) Limited to Legend FM for
the year ended 31st March 2003 was HK$43,879,000.

BEXS
THRZSHEBRALTEERS  TEBREEUEXSMES
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Connected transactions continues

The Company has been granted a waiver by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong from the strict compliance of the
requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules in respect of
the transactions stated in paragraphs 2(a) and 2(b) above.
These transactions have been reviewed by independent non-
executive directors of the Company who have confirmed that
these transactions were:

(il conducted in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's
business;

(i)  on normal commercial terms and on terms that are fair
and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company
are concerned;

(i} entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing these transactions; and

(iv) not exceed 3% of the audited consolidated net tangible
assets of the Group in the financial year.

Subsequent to the spin off of Digital China Holdings Limited
(“DCHL" and its subsidiaries (coliectively, “DCHL Group") from
the Group for separate listing in June 2001, DCHL became an
associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company’s
controlling shareholder. DCHL is deemed as a connected
person in relation to the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.
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Connected transactions continved

(@)

Pursuant to a management agreement dated 8th May
2001 between the Company's subsidiary and DCHL, the
Group has agreed to share with DCHL Group certain
office space situated at 20/F., Devon House, Taikoo
Place, 979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong for the
period from 16th May 2001 to 30th November 2002 in
return for a monthly management fee of HK$186,270
exclusive of rates, estate management fees and other
related expenses. The monthly fee was determined with
reference to the rental that the Group paid to the landlord
for leasing of the office and the actual floor area occupied
by DCHL Group.

Pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 27th March 2000
between a subsidiary of the Company and a subsidiary
of DCHL, the Group has sub-leased to DCHL Group
certain office space situated at Lian Xiang Building,
Southeastern Corner of 1 Tai Yi Road, Belin District, Xian,
China at a monthly rental of RMB72,400. The tenancy is
for a term of 5 years commencing from 1st October 1999.
The rental was agreed upon based on the market value
for premises of similar type as certified by an independent
firm of professional property valuers when the tenancy
agreement was entered into.

The Group purchased information technology products
from DCHL Group. For the year ended 31st March 2003,
such purchases amounted to HK$5,414,000.

The Group sold Legend brand computers and related
products to DCHL Group. For the year ended 31st March
2003, such sales amounted to HK$1,132,000.

(@)
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Connected transactions continuee
The Company has been granted a waiver by the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong from the strict compliance of the

requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing Rulss in respect of

the transactions stated in paragraphs 3(c) and 3(d) above.

These transactions have been reviewed by independent nan-

executive directors of the Company who have confirmed that

these transactions were:

(i)

(i)

conducted in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business;

on normal commercial terms or on terms that are fair
and reasonable sc far as the shareholders of the Company
are concerned,;

entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions, or {where there
are no such agreements) on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties;

in respect of transaction stated in paragraph 3(c) above,
not exceed the higher of: (1) 1% of the audited
consolidated turnover of the Group; and (2) HK$46.3
million, in the financial year; and

in respect of transaction stated in paragraph 3(d) above,
not exceed the higher of: (1) 1% of the audited
consolidated turnover of the Group; and (2) HK$14.2
million, in the financial year.

The Company has received from the auditors & letter stating
that the connected transactions stated in paragraphs 3(c) and
3(d) above:

have been approved by the board of directors of the
Company;

were conducted in accordance with the pricing policy of
the Company;
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Connected transactions continued BEXS »
@iy were entered into on terms no less favorable than terms iy FBTERETINEEBYEZENRTEDT
available to/from independent third parties; and Pre

(iv) have not exceeded the caps agreed with the Stock vy WEBBBEABEMERSNHBENLE -
Exchange of Hong Kong.

4.  Subsequent to the setting up of Legend Mobile Communicaticn 4.  AAFR2EMBLRSE IR ARAFEENES
Co. Ltd. (the “JV"), a joint venture company between a wholly- BETROHARLR(EEET]) R BEREIEE
owned subsidiary of the Company Legend (Beijing) Limited BIEBRAR(IaERRE  EEETEREER
and Xiamen Overseas Chinese Electronic Co., Ltd. (*Xoceco™), BIEERE  METRMTERATLEEEAL -
Xoceco being a substantial shareholder of the JV became a TEER  AEFBRFET TR REMBAL (EE
connected person in relation to the Company for the purpose REMBEDETUZSNT ¢
of the Listing Rules. During the year, the Group entered into
the following transactions with Xoceco and/or its associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules):
fa) On 19th June 2002, Legend (Beijing) Limited entered into fa) BEUtRERANEFEEFR_ZT-EN

an agreement with Xoceco pursuant to which Legend B-rA BTy —HGE Bt - BRSO R) AR
{Beijing) Limited acquired from Xoceco 16% of the equity DRIBAARB24,000,000TRBEZEFES
interest in the JV at a consideration of RMB24 million ELRSIRHM16%RAERS  TREARE
and to invest RMB37.5 million as capital for acquisition 37,500,0007c{EBER  E—HWEBEE QT
of further equity interest in the JV. The consideration for Az - WERERITNEFTRATRAE
the acquisition was arrived at after arm’s length AU EERRINEMEREEAEERE
negotiation between the parties and was based on the T o MEDTR - S RRRAMECR B
face value of the registered capital of the JV. The R OFEES0.8%  EEETHEE19.2% °
acquisition was completed. The JV is currently owned as

to 80.8% by Legend (Beijing) Limited and 19.2% by

Xoceco.

(o)  Pursuant to a tenancy agresment dated 19th June 2002 by RESLLFNEESTFR_ZEE-_F-F+
between the JV and Xoceco, the JV has leased from NBFTUNBERSE  5EARREEETH
Xoceco certain factory and office space situated at Xiamen BURFEEFRER NESREXFERER
Qverseas Chinese Electronics Science Park, Huaju High BEEEFIXANNBEERRAE - BAESER
Technology Development Zone, Xiamen, China at a ARE101,001.66T (TREEERREMS
monthly rental of RMB101,091.66, exclusive of E) - BEBES  RZETLFNAABER -
management fees and other outgoing expenses for the THESZTVELARSTISE T ARELT -

period of 5 years expliring on 5th April 2007. The rental
was determined with reference to the prevailing market
rents when the tenancy agreement was entered into.
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Connected transactions continves
(¢} The JV made purchases from Xoceco and/or its
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) such as raw
materials, semi-finished products, moulds and module
for production and business operations of mobile
handsets. For the year ended 31st March 2003, such
purchases amounted to RMB34,310,000.

The Company has been granted a walver by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong from the strict compliance of the
requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules in respect of
the transaction stated in paragraph 4(c) above. This transaction
has been reviewed by independent non-executive directors of
the Company who have confirmed that this transaction was:

() entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group’s business;

(i) conducted either on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable than terms available to (or from, as
appropriate) independent third party;

(i) on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the
sharehaclders of the Company are concerned; and

{iv) the aggregate amount of the transactions not exceed
RMB38 million.

Related party transactions for the year are also set out in Note 28 to
the accounts.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since 1999 with
responsibility of assisting the Board in providing an independent
review of the financial statements and internal control system. It acts
in accordance with its Terms of Reference which clearly deal with
its membership, authority, duties and frequency of meetings. The
current Committee members are Mr Wong Wai Ming (chairman),
Professor Woo Chia-Wei, Mr Ting Lee Sen and Mr Zeng Maochao.
The majority of the Committee members are independent non-

executive directors.

The Audit Committee meets four times a year to review accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, discuss internal
control and financial reporting matters including the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements before recommending them to the
Board for approval. The external auditors, CFO and the management
of Finance Department and Internal Audit Department attend to
answer guestions on the reports or their work.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in May 2003 with
responsibility of assisting the Board in determining the framework
or broad pclicies for the remuneration of executive directors of the
Company and the allocation of share options, overseeing any major
changes in employee benefit structures and considering other topics
as defined by the Board. The objective of such policies shall be to
ensure that the members of executive management of the Company
are provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and responsible manner, rewarded
for their individual contributions to the success of the Company.

The initial Committee members are Mr Wong Wai Ming (chairman),
Professor Woo Chia-Weil and Mr Zeng Maochao. The majority of
the Committee members are independent non-executive directors.
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Caode of best practice

Apart from the fact that the non-executive directors are not appointed
for a specific term as they are subject to retirement by rotation at
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company has complied with the Code of Best
Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the year.

Auditors
The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lic Uan 2h;

Liu Chuanzhi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th May 2003
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REPORT # & &

PRICEVWATERHOUSE{ COPERS

B BRI R F A AT

AUDITORS’ REPORT TC THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LEGEND GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 77 to 142 which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to
prepare accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing
accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by
the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the
Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince’s Building
Central Hong Kong
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Cpinion

In our opinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March 2003 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

@‘Ef

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th May 2003
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CONSOLIDATED | % &
PROFIT AND LOSS | 8 & &

ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31st March 2003

HE-PESFIA=+—ALEE

7Y

2003 2002
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fitex BT BET T
Turnover EEE 3 20,233,290 20,853,254
Earnings before interest, taxation, BRME TR - FE
depreciation and amortisation expenses REHATEERF 1,174,720 1,008,938
Depreciation expenses HEEH (160,304) (143,048)
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEEH (15,246) -
(Losses)/gains on disposal of subsidiaries, HERBAR  BEQF
an associated company and investment RERRE
securities Z(E|) s (26,802) 164,240
Interest income FlE YA 77,233 67,360
Profit from operations BERF 4 1,049,601 1,097,490
Finance costs TIEER 6 (20) (11,785)
1,049,581 1,085,705
Share of {losses)/profits of jointly G EE
controlled entities B (B8) 5 (34,756) 8,468
Share of profits/(losses) of associated JEIRE & N ]
companies EF(E5E) 13,826 (12,979)
Profit before taxation B B 5 1,028,651 1,081,194
Taxation I8 7 (26,018) (23,092
Profit after taxation BRERIE R 1,002,633 1,058,102
Minority interests LEBEEER 14,519 (13,202)
Profit attributable to shareholders R R B A 5 10 1,017,152 1,044,900
Dividends iz s 71 747,411 383,088
Earnings per share (HK cents): SRAEF GBI
- Basic — &R 12 13.55 13.86
[l | NP I T N | N TR R s “4 N annra 4 70




BALANCE | &
SHEETS & &

-
As at 31st March 2003 RZBE=Fz-H=+—H

, Group Company
£8 NG
2003 2002 2003 2002
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ik BETRT  BETIL BAETT ERTA

Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets EREE 13 120,621 - - -
Tangible fixed assets BHETEE 14 845,976 847,316 41,000 3,169
Construction-in-progress TRIE 15 174,138 43,866 - -
Investments in subsidiaries REBABZHE 16(a) - - 2,327,875 2,327,875
Investments in jointly REREHIESE
controlled entities ZE 17 198,549 210,432 - -
Investments in associated REE QA
companies 2KE 18 101,613 204,806 - -
Loan to a related company EZF—-HEELR - - - 50,034
Investment sgcurities EHRE 19 73,649 30,762 37,890 -
1,514,546 1,337,182 2,408,765 2,381,078
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 1,269,051 855,519 - -
Amounts due from FEUF B 2 F)
subsidiaries RE 16(b) - - 2,188,544 2,139,345
Amounts due from jointly FEW RS
controlled entities YN - 184,132 - -
Trade receivables ERE FER 21(a) 553,516 660,737 - -
Notes receivable EWEE 21(b) 383,412 17,607 - -
Deposits, prepayments and Be  BRRE
other receivables R HEMEREER 226,748 185,391 89,737 76,633
Cash and bank balances BeREITHES 22 2,808,323 2,441,169 1,813,751 1,393,909
5,241,050 4,354,555 4,092,032 3,608,887
Current liabilities RBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENHEBLRRER 16(b) - - 87,431 189,468
Trade payables ENEZER 23(a) 1,588,632 1,151,950 - -
Notes payable ENEE 23(b) 279,381 184,781 - -
Accruals and other payables A EEREMEMRRN 630,779 663,361 15,427 16,197
Tax payable EHE 8,212 2,231 - -
2,507,004 2,002,323 102,858 205,665
Net current assets TREEERE 2,734,046 2,352,232 3,989,174 3,404,222
Total assets less current BEERRE

liabilities aE 4,248,592 3,689,414 6,395,939 5,785,300




Group Company
%8 AT
2003 2002 2003 2002
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
s BT BETT BYTR BB

Financed by: BEWTR
Share capital TS 25 186,934 187,701 186,934 187,701
Reserves fEE 27 4,001,587 3,494,333 6,208,701 5,697,205
Shareholders’ funds BREES 4,188,521 3,682,034 6,395,635 5,784,996
Minority interests SERFREE 59,741 7,050 - -
Deferred taxation ELEHE 24 330 330 304 304
4,248,592 3,689,414 6,395,939 5,785,300
On behalf of the Board
BEFEN
Liu Chuanzhi Yang Yuanging
nEx BrE
Director Director
- BEE
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AOMT MLUVY
STATEMENT

For the year ended 37st March 2003

LE
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== 2%
BE-FP=FZAS+-AULFE

2003 2002
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HisE BETR BT
Operating activities e i
Net cash inflow from operations LETRIR S HEE 32 1,150,075 809,490
Interest received FLEBA 77,233 67,360
Interest paid Fext (20) {11,785)
Tax paid B (17,410) (22,047)
Net cash inflow from opsrating activities EREEFTRIREFE 1,209,878 843,018
Investing activities REED
Purchase of tangible fixed assets BEABVETEE (125,708) (268,536)
Sale of tangible fixed assets LEEFEEERE 29,727 32,236
Payment for construction-in-progress SNEEIRIE (169,000) (187,053
Payment for patent acquired EEPNGTL (42,453) -
Purchase of investment securities HBEEEHRE (200,237} (2,7486)
Sale of investment securities HEFRRE 140,517 23,229
Net cash inflow in respect of acquisition of W EEHIE A F]
subsidiaries FSIRE 55 38 4,847 -
Payment for acquisition of business BEER (54,613) -
Investment in an associated company REHE AT (2,670) -
Net cash outflow in respect of disposal LEWB QR
of subsidiaries BEFE - {127,240)
Investment in jointly controlled entities BAARZEHIEE (24,289) (250,747)
Repayment of advance from BN EEER
an associated company FIRER 50,034 10,004
Proceeds from disposal of HERE N E)
an associated company FRSRE 27,286 37,736
Dividends received from associated DIREE BT
companies s 6,892 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEBTFEIR SR (359,667) (733,117}
Net cash inflow before financing RETRERIFTSR SRS 850,211 109,901




| 9

2003 2002
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ffsx BET T BT
Financing activities BREEY 33
Exercise of share options and issue of {T{E B ARIE R BT
new shares Eedn 1,887 143,949
Repurchase of shares EERG (79,399) (263,761)
Dividends paid = FTRR S (405,276) (294,578)
increase in bank loans RITEFEM - 121,495
Decrease in loans from minority ipy=/NET R g d=2)
shareholders of a subsidiary BRZED - (4,840)
Net cash outflow from financing BMEMMERS 8 (482,788) (297,735)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BeRERBESEM
equivalents B 367,423 (187,834)
Cash and cash squivalents at the FMHRER
beginning of the year ZEEERe 2,441,169 2,633,851
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes B 28 (269) (4,648)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ERBaR
of the year £RES 34 2,808,323 2,441,169
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STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st March 2003

47N
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2003 2002
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
fiE BET R BT
Total equity at the beginning FVERESE 3,682,034 3,882,022
of the year
Deficit in fair market value of BEREFZAOTHE
investment securities Japi=! 27 (20,891) (36,058)
Exchange differences arising from HEBIEBLRR
translation of foreign subsidiaries, Bg N AR
associated companies and ERECZEERAMEEY
jointly controlled entities ERER 27 156 3,819
Net losses not recognised in the RPBEERPEE
profit and loss account ot beis (20,735) (32,239)
Profit for the year REFEHH 1,017,152 1,044 900
Reserves realised upon disposal REEZHRERER
of investment securities 2 EE 27 (7,120) (13,518)
Total recognised gains DR AEEE 989,297 999,143
Goodwill written (offi/back arising from BRI E QBRI
disposal of subsidiaries (MiBR) R E 2 B 27 (22) 22,897
Exercise of share options TTiE AR E 27 1,887 145,755
Repurchase of shares FEEARD 27 (79,399) (265,567)
Dividends paid [EAREES) 27 (405,276) {(1,103,116)
Total equity at the end of the year FREREE 4,188,521 3,682,034
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Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants ("HKSA”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that, as disclosed
in the accounting policies below, investment securities are

stated at fair value.

In the current year, the Group adopted the following Statements
of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) issued by the HKSA
which are effective for accounting periods commencing on or
after 1st January 2002;

SSAP 1 (revised) : Presentation of financial statements
SSAP 11 (revised) : Foreign currency translation

SSAP 15 (revised) : Cash flow statements

SSAP 34 (revised) : Employee benefits

The adoption of the above SSAPs has no material effect on
the Group's accounts.

Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated accounts are set out below:

(a) Basis of consolidation

(i)  The consolidated accounts include the accounts of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
March. A subsidiary is a company in which the
Company, directly or indirectly, controls more than
half of its voting power; has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies; to appoint or
remove the majority of the members of the board of
directors; or to cast majority of votes at the meetings
of the board of directors.
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2  Principal accounting policies contnued 2 XTESHEXE#
(a) Basis of consolidation continued (a) HEBESH

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of REEFENBARELZBELRZE
during the year are included in the consolidated profit B BRSNS EEHEENE
and loss account from the effective date of B ER) st AGEBRE -
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.
The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR BEELEMEREBFE
represents the difference between the net sales EREEMEEEEREERBEI R
proceeds and the Group’s share of its net assets - NGB RARNANGEBERANERY
together with any unamortised goodwill or capital FAEEBBXETERURTAEMZS
reserve which was not previously charged or SEREREREECEE -
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account and any related accumulated exchange
reserve.

{il  All significant intercompany transactions and (i) FEBANSASEZIAREARS RER
balances within the Group are eliminated on HRERE R B I -
consolidation.

(i) Minority interests represent the interests of outside (i) PERFERTDIENAREREHNELD
shareholders in the operating results and net assets EMEEREREEFE NS -
of subsidiaries.

{iv)  Inthe Company’s balance sheet the investments in (ivi WBRSEEDERAENRAESES
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for BIRIABRPEEGER - WERARZ
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are REARDR R ERIR EEED AR T

accounted for by the Company on the basis of BEH -
dividends received and receivable.




2 Principal accounting policies continues
(b) Joint ventures

U

(i

(i)

(iv)

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over

the economic activity.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes
the Group's share of the resuits of jointly controlled
entities for the year, and the consolidated balance
sheet includes the Group’s share of the net assets
of the jointly controlled entities and goodwill/negative
goodwill (net of accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses) on acquisition.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a jointly controlled
entity represents the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the Group’s share of its net
assets together with any unamortised goodwill/
negative goodwill which was not previously chargad
or recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account and any related accumulated exchange
reserve.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of jointly
controlled entities are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

2 FESHHEER s

(b)
(i)

(i

(iil)

(iv)
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2 Principal accounting policies continuea
(c) Associated companies

U

W

(i

(iv)

An associated company is a company, not being a
subsidiary or a joint venture, in which an equity
interest is held for the long-term and significant
influence is exercised in its management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes
the Group's share of the resuits of associated
companies for the year, and the consolidated
balance sheet includes the Group's share of the net
assets of the associated companies and goodwill/
negative goodwill (net of accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses) on acquisition,

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associated
company represents the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the Group’s share of its net
assets together with any unamortised goodwill/
negative goodwill and which was not previously
charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account and any related accumulated exchange
reserve.

In the Company's balance sheet the investments in
associated companies are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of
associated companies are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

2 XEEHEBX e
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Principal accounting policies continued
(d) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
incorporated into the accounts by translating foreign
currencies into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising therefrom are dealt with in the profit
and loss account.

The balance sheet of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and associated companies expressed in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date whilst the profit and loss account
is translated at an average rate. Exchange differences
are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Tangible fixed assets

() Land use rights, leasehold land and buildings/
improvements
Land use rights, leasehold land and buildings/
improvements are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation or depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the land use rights periods ranging from 20 to

50 years.

Amortisation of leasehold land is calculated to write
off its cost to its estimated residual value over the
unexpired period of the lease or their expected useful
lives 10 the Group of 50 years whichever is shorter.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
2% 10 5%.

2

FE

(d)

(e)

SN EBEs

MEBRE
REEZNEXGNEXPEZABRERES
BT WINEREZEEREBEEKREEE 2
HEeRnELAETEMARERN - BHEEZ
EREBEDBABRRTEE -

ASNEFIRR B AT - AEZFEERME
REZEEEERREERZELRY  MmE
mRAAPHERRE B4 EREHEAE
ANEERBERE -

BREEEEE
(i) LH(EFE BRI REFEEE

THERRE  EOTRER S EBEK
FENBRBETBEHIAERRREA

I AR R E RS R20E50F H
AEBUESH -

AR#) T B TR B AR A M R F Bk IR AT
EEAEEFERZS0F B (MEBEE) #
BERTEZHEMGEBRER - FIEAZ
TEEHEERR2%ESY

{ ECEMND ANNIL 1A RERPOIRT 20072 / 07 BESE&2R



2

Principal accounting policies continues

(e)

Tangible fixed assets continves

0

(i)

Land use rights, leasehold land and buildings/
improvements continued

Depreciation on buildings is calculated to write off
their cost to their estimated residual value over the
unexpired period of the leases or their expected
useful lives to the Group of 50 years whichever is
shorter. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are 2% to 5%.

Depreciation of leasehold improvements is
calculated to write off their cost to their estimated
residual value on the straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives to the Group of 5 years or
unexpired periocds of the leases whichever is shorter.
The principal annual rate used for this purpose is
20%.

Other tangible fixed assets

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation on other tangible
fixed assets is calculated to write off their cost to
their estimated residual value on the straight-line
basis over their expected useful lives to the Group.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
20% to 33%.

2
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Principal accounting policies continued

(e)

Tangible fixed assets continved

(i) Impairment of tangible fixed assets
At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external sources of information are considered to
assess whether there is any indication that assets
included in construction-in-progress and tangible
fixed assets are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss
is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in
the profit and loss account.

(v} Gain or loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Gain or loss on disposal of a tangible fixed asset is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in the profit and loss account.

(v)  Cost of restoring and improving tangible fixed assets
Major costs incuirred in restoring tangible fixed
assets to their normal working condition are charged
to the profit and loss account. Improvements are
capitalised and depreciated over their expected
useful lives to the Group.

Construction-in-progress

Canstruction-in-progress is stated at cost. Cost
comprises all direct and indirect costs of acquisition or
construction of buildings and plant and machinery as well
as interest expenses and exchange differences on the
related funds borrowed during the construction,
installation and testing periods and prior to the
commencement date, less any accumulated impairment
losses. No depreciation is provided on construction-in-
progress. On completion, the building and pilant and
machinery are transferred to tangible fixed assets at cost

less accumulated impairment losses.

2
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Principal accounting policies continued

(g)

Intangible assets

M

Gooawill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the net assets of the acquired subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associated companies at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisition occurring on or after 1st
January 2001 is included in intangible assets and is
amortised using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life. Goodwill arising on major
strategic acquisitions of the Group to expand its
product or geographical market coverage is
amortised over a maximum period of 20 years. For
all other acquisitions goodwill is generally amortised
over 3 to 10 years.

SSAP 31 prescribes procedures to be applied to
ensure that assets are carried at not more than their
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of
an asset is defined to be the higher of its net seliing
price and its value in use. The Group determines
the value in use of its assets (including fixed assets,
goodwill arising on business combinations
accounted for using the purchase method and
intangible assets) as the present vaiue of estimated
future cash flows togsther with estimated disposal
proceeds at the end of its useful life. The Group is
required to assess at each balance sheet date
whether there are any indications that assets may
be impaired, and if there are such Iindications, the
recoverable amount of the assets is to be
determined. Any resulting impairment losses
identified are charged to the consoclidated profit and
loss account.
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2 Principal accounting policies continues 2

(@)

(h)

intangible assets continued

()

]

(1)

Gooawill continued

In accordance with the provisions of Interpretation
13 “Goodwill - continuing reguirements for goodwill
and negative goodwill perviously eliminated against/
credited to reserves” issued by HKSA, assessments
of impairment of gocdwill also apply to goodwill
previously eliminated against reserves which will not
be reinstated at the time of adoption of SSAP 30.
Any impairment loss identified in respect of goodwill
previously eliminated against reserves is to be
recognised as an expense in the consolidated profit
and loss account.

Patents and trademarks

Expenditure on acquired patents, trademarks and
licenses is capitalised and amortised using the
straight-line method over their useful lives, but not
exceeding 20 years. Patents, trademarks and
licenses are not revalued as there is no active market
for these assets.

Impairment of intangible assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of any intangible asset, including
goodwill previously written off against reserves, is
assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount.

Investment securities

Investments which are held for non-trading purpose are

stated at fair value at the balance sheet date. Changes in

the fair value of individual securities are credited or debited

to the investment revaluation reserve until the security is

sold, or is determined to be impaired. Upon disposal, the

cumulative gain or loss representing the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant security, together with any surplus/deficit

transferred from the investment revaluation reserve. is
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2 Principal accounting policies continuso

(h)

()

0

Investment securities continved

Individual investments are reviewed regularly to determine
whether they are impaired. When an investment is
considered to be impaired the cumulative loss recorded
in the revaluation reserve is taken to the profit and loss
account.

Transfers from the investment revaluation reserve to the
profit and loss account as a result of impairments are
written back in the profit and loss account when the
gircumstances and events leading tc the impairment
cease to exist.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis, and in the case of work-in-progress and
finished goods (except for trading products), cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
attributable proportion of production overheads. For
trading products, cost represents invoiced value on
purchases, less purchase returns and discounts. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated
sales procesds less estimated selling expenses.

Accounts receivable

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the
extent that they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts
receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of such
provision.
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2 Principal accounting policies continves

(k)

(0

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance
sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and deposits held at call with banks.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resaurces will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. Where the Group expects a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be

measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the accounts. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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2 Principal accounting policies contived
{n) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation
rate in respect of timing differences between profit as
computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in
the accounts 1o the extent that a liability or an asset is
expected to be payable or recoverable in foreseeable
future.

(o) Operating ieases
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
are accounted for as operating leases. Rental applicable
o such operating leases are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(p) Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the
transfer of ownership, which generally coincides with the
time of shipment. Revenue from provision of systems
integration service is recognised when services are
rendered. Revenue from provision of internet service is
recognised when services are rendered. Interest income
is accrued on a time proportion basis on the principal
amounts outstanding and at the rates applicable. Dividend
income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

(g) Employee benefits
il Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave, sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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2  [Principal accounting potlicies continuss

(@)

"

Employee benefits continued

(i) Pension obligations
The Group's contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme for qualified Hong
Kong employees are expensed as incurred and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

In addition, the Group's contributions to respective
local municipal government retirement schemes in
Chinese mainland are expensed as incurred while
the local municipal governments in Chinese
mainland undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of the qualified employess in Chinese
mainland.

(i) Share options
No employee benefits cost is recognised when
options are granted. When the options are
exercised, equity is increased by the amount of the
proceeds received.

Segment repoiting

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that geographical segments
be presented as the primary reporting format and
business as the secondary reporting format.

Segment assets of geographical segments consist
primarily of tangible fixed assets, construction-in-
progress, inventories and receivables, and mainly exclude
investments in jointly controlled entities, investments in
associated companies, investment securities and cash
and cash equivalents. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude tax payable and deferred
taxation. Capital expenditure comprises additions to
tangible fixed assets and construction-in-progress.
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2 Principal accounting policies continued
(n Segment reporting continued
In presenting on the basis of business segments, tangible
fixed assets and construction-in-progress are excluded
from segment assets.

3 Turnover, revenue and segment information
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of advanced
information technology (“IT”) products and services. Revenues
recognised during the year are as follows:

FTESTRR »

n 78E&H =
RERSEERY  SEAEITBREERE
TEEREERIE-

EEE Uk oEER
AEAFERESRE(NTHERRRK - FRER
ZWAIRT

Group
£5
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT

Corporate IT business DEITER
Consumer T business HEBITER
Handheld device business FHEEER
T service business THRIE %R
Contract manufacturing business ERBHERR
Others Hfb

10,803,311 10,077,796
6,822,633 7,400,769

1,440,328 216,434
183,800 -
983,218 1,633,864

- 1,624,391

20,233,290 20,853,254

Primary reporting format - geographical segments
The Group operates, through its subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities and associated companies, in four major geographical
regions — the People’s Republic of China, including Chinese
mainland and Hong Kong (the “PRC”), Asia Pacific (excluding
PRC), North America and Europe.

There are no material sales or other transactions among the
geographical segments.

EFFRAN - wHIE

FEERBEMBAR  HEZBEERBELAR
MEFERE -—PEARANB(RETERELE
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Turnover, revenue and segment information continued
Primary reporting format - geographical segments
continued

In presenting information on the basis of gecgraphical
segments, segment turnover and segment operating results
are based on the geographical location of customers, Segment
assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.
The segment turnover and segment operating results, if based
on geographical location of assets, are all categorised under
PRC operations.

Secondary reporting format - business segments
The Group is categorised into 5 main business segments:

. Corporate IT business

. Consumer IT business

. Handheld device business

. IT service business

. Contract manufacturing business

Other operations of the Group last year mainly comprised
business operated by Digital China Holdings Limited ("DCHL”)
and its subsidiaries (“DCHL Group”), including sales of foreign
brand computers and related products and provision of system

integration services.

There are no material sales or other transactions among the

business segments.

EX¥ - UBRIFES o
ERIEAK - HE53E 7

EHEASHEINERNE  DEEREREATREP
a2 - SREERRERZ EEZ -
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3 Turnover, revenue and segment information comines 3 EHEHE - WHRERISBER o

(a) Primary reporting format - geographical segments (a) EFHHFHX - Hl5E
Asia Pacific
(excluding Group
PRC) North Total
PRC TEAE America  Europe £8
FE (PEBRMN XM B &t
2003 2003 2003 2003 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS'000
BETT BEETR BETR ABFT BEETx

Profit and loss account BB
Turnover sEE '9,738,075 5,818 14,999 474,398 20,233,290
Segment operating resuits DBEELEE ,011,204 (412) 130 3,494 1,014,416
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries, HEMRBLE -

an associated company and BELIAR

investment securities BEREZER (26,802) - - - (26,802
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEEBE 115,246) - - - (15,248)
Finance income BB A 77,233
Finance costs HHESR ' (20)
Contribution to operating profit BFEE 1,049,581
Share of losses of jointly controlled entities s £RIZEHIEEER 756) - - - {34,756)
Share of profits of associated companies  [EMEEEE N EIEF] .,826 - - - 13,826
Profit before taxation B AR F| 1,028,651
Taxation BB {26,018)
Profit after taxation BREEET 1,002,633
Minority interests LERRER 14,519

Profit attributable to shareholders BEBGEF 1,017,152




(@)

continued

3 Turnover, revenue and segment information contrves 3

Primary reporting format — geographical segments (a)

BEE WaRRIRES g

EXFHELIN - 58 »

Asia Pacific

{excluding Group
PRC) North Total
PRC TAE America  Europe £
FE (RERMN EEM B &
2003 2003 2003 2003 2003
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT RBETR B¥TR B¥Trn #B%Trn

Balance sheet EESEX
Segment assets PEEE 3,184,037 - 1,723 40,333 3,226,093
Investments in jointly controlled entities HEEHEEEE 198,549 - - - 198,549
Investments in associated companies BEREEE 101,613 - - - 101,613
investment securities BHERE 71,392 2,257 - - 73,649
Unallocated assets FAMEE 3,155,692
Consolidated total assets SAREERE 6,755,596
Segment liabilities DEBE 2,492,220 - 3,104 3,468 2,498,792
Tax liabilities HERE 8,542
Consolidated total iabilities HSeaERE 2,507,334
Capital expenditure EAHY 337,161 - - - 337,161
Depreciation TE 158,985 - 405 914 160,304
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3  Turnover, revenue and segment information cominves 3 EHE WB RS BEEN »

(@) Primary reporting format - geographical segments

continued

(@) EXRNBLR - B2 W &

Asia Pacific
(excluding Group
PRC) North Total
PRC TRE  America Europe %8
BE(RERN HEN B =H
2002 2002 2002 2002 2002
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
AETT BETRT BE%TR A¥TT B%Tx
Profit and loss account BRE
Turnover =4 19,702,459 282,283 104,872 763,640 20,853,204
Segment operating resuilts DERERE 772,684 30,500 17,833 44,873 865,890
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBAR  BEQAR
associated companies and REHTE
investment securities pd & 164,240 - - - 164,240
Finance income BRI 67,360
Finance costs BHER (11,785)
Contribution to operating profit AN 1,085,705
Share of profits of jointly controlled entities  FEfS R B EEF 8,468 - - - 8,468
Share of losses of associated companies R4 2 55 (12,979) - - - {12,879
Profit before taxation BRBATER 1,081,194
Taxation HIE (23,002)
Profit after taxation BRERH 1,058,102
Minority interests DEHBRFEER (13,202)
Profit attributable to shareholders AR RS S F 1,044,900
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3 Turnover, revenue and segment information comivee 3 EEHE - WBROBER &

{a) Primary reporting format — geographical segments (a) BEXRIHLX - w@sE #
continued
Asia Pacific

(excluding Group

PRC) North Total

PRC TAE  America Europe £8

PR (RERN I EM UM =H)

2002 2002 2002 2002 2002

HK$000  HK$000 HKSC00  HK$'000  HK$'000
AETL AETI ERTL ARTT EETR

Balance sheet HEAER
Segment assets DEBE 2,363,863 ~ 1,804 55,997 2,421,664
Investments in jointly controlled entities ~ HEREHEERE 210,432 - - ~ 210,432
Investments in associated companies BEQTIRE 204,806 - - -~ 204,806
Investment securities BHERE 11,491 19,271 - - 30,762
Unallocated assets FOREE 2,824,073
Consolidated total assets MEEELE 5,691,737
Segment liabilities SEEE 1,980,340 - 3,820 15,9832 2,000,092
Tax fiabilities HEEE 2,561
Consofidated total HEAE

liabllities okl 2,002,653
Capital expenditure EARY 455,589 - - - 455,589
Depreciation e 141,906 - 325 817 143,048

1 EGEND ANNUIAI REPORT 2002 / 07 BErE£ 53
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Turnover, revenue and segment information conines 3 EHEE WBERDSEER »
{b) Secondary reporting format - business segments (by EHEFIHETX - £BSE
Group

Contribution Consolidated

to operating total assets

Turnover profit &

BEH P =y EEAR

2003 2003 2003

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BETR BRI

Corporate [T business EITER 10,803,311 744,153 1,270,124

Consumer IT business EBITERS 6,822,633 363,527 384,831

Handheld device business FREEREY . 1,440,328 29,017 316,471

IT service business ITAR 75 375 183,800 (61,405) 78,111

Contract manufacturing business BRBEER 983,218 8,554 156,442

Amortisation of goodwill RS - (7,463) -
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries, HEWBLAR -

an associated company and BENER

investment securities BHREZERE - (26,802) -

Investments in jointly controlled entities HEESI BB - - 198,549

Investments in associated companies BENRIRE - - 101,613

Investment securities BLERE - - 73,649

Unallocated assets KOBEE - - 4,175,806

20,233,290 1,049,581 6,755,596




3 Turnover, revenue and segment information coniner 3 EEE - BRSO EER 4
(b} Secondary reporting format - business segments (b) BWHHESX - ¥%¥58 s
continued
Group
e

Contribution  Consolidated

to operating total assets

Turmover profit mE

ST BRES BESE

2002 2002 2002

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BB T T BT T

Corporate IT business (TR 10,077,796 573,077 917,799

Consumer IT business EBITER 7,400,769 234,335 394,428

Handheld device business ?T%'é%%%ﬁ% 216,434 (18,906) 26,393

Contract manufacturing business FEIREER 1,633,864 147,901 191,862

Others fltﬁﬁ 1,624,391 (14,942) -
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries, HEWBRTE -

associated companies and B NE R

investment securities BHREEWE - 164,240 -

Investments in jointly controlled entities HEEHEEIRE - - 210,432

Investments in associated companies B ARIRE - - 204,806

Investment securities BHIRE - - 30,762

Unallocated assets FOBEE - - 3,715,255

20,853,254 1,085,705 5,691,737




4 REEnF

4  Profit from operations
@ (a)

2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEITR BET T
Turnover R 20,233,290 20,853,254
Cost of sales HEMR (17,234,746) (18,070,819)
Gross profit EF 2,998,544 2,782,435
Other revenue HA 77,233 67,360

(Losses)/gains on disposal of HERBLT  BEQT

subsidiaries, an associated company REFREZ
and investment securities (B518) Mz (26,802) 164,240
3,048,975 3,014,085
Distribution expenses DB (1,393,990) (1,390,571)
Admiristrative expenses TREA (328,736) (363,851)
Other operating expenses EfREER (261,402) (162,123)
Amortisation of intangible assets EBREEEEN (15,246) -
Total operating expenses (Note (b)) B BEREE (W) (1,999,374) (1,916,545)
Profit from operations kel 1,049,601 1,087,490
{b) Analysis of total operating expenses by nature: (b) BEBAEE KEEREEIN

Selling expenses HEEH (379,842) (382,372)
Promotional and advertising expenses  #HERESER (425,143) (397,352)

Staff costs (including directors’ BTRAN (BEEFTHE)
emoluments) (Note 8) (W 8) (688,519) (674,920)
Other expenses EMEA (490,624) (461,901)
Amortisation of intangible assets BRAERE (15,246) -
Total operating expenses REBAERE (1,999,374) (1,916,545}




5 Profit before taxation 5 BRBBEFR

2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ABETIT

Profit before taxation is stated BRATAR MG T7IEE
after charging the following:

Charging k&
Auditors' remuneration BREETRN S 2,698 2,811
Depreciation of owned tangible BEEHVETEE
fixed assets e 160,304 143,048
Cost of inventories sold BEFERRX 16,965,244 17,870,575
Rental expenses under operating leases EEMHTZHESTE 67,900 88,885
Research and development expenses HMEER 314,182 118,744
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets LHESFETEAEZEE 3,110 1,440
Net exchange loss [E X EHEFE 13,346 8,309
6 Finance costs 6 HKEH
2003 2002
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Interest payable on bank loans RITERREX
and overdrafts BRFE 20 10,968
Other interest HMRE - 817

Total finance costs PRERESE 20 11,785
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7 Taxation

@

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate
of 16% (2002: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year.

BiE

(a)

ERMGHOBAFEGEHRRERFLEH
E16% (ZFE_F - 16%) fFEE

(o) Taxation outside Hong Kong represents tax charges on (b) BELUIIMEBZHEDREAEEEEME
the assessable profits of subsidiaries operating outside STERERIIMEE (BEREARE SR 2B
Hong Kong including the Chinese mainland, calculated REIZERREFZHIERX -
at rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

(c) The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit (c) MRS BHEBEAMBIBIBRE
and loss account represents:

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Hong Kong profits tax EEFEBR - 4,120
Taxation outside Hong Kong BRMIIMEERZHIE 23,730 20,985
Overprovision in pricr years FEERBEREE (339) (1,702)
Deferred taxation (Note 24/ BIEFRIE (FiaE 24) - (23)
23,391 23,380

Share of taxation attributable to: FEIRFRIE
Jointly controlled entities HEZFIEE 1,416 -
Associated companies NG| 1,211 (288)
26,018 23,092

(d) Pursuant to various approval documents issued by the (d) BEREBAENBGERELOHT  ZEE

Chinese mainland tax authority, certain Chinese mainland
subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to preferential
Chinese mainfand income tax treatments.

Legend (Beijing) Limited is entitled to preferential Chinese
mainland income tax rate of 7.5% for the three years
ending 31st December 2003.

Legend Mobile Communication Co. Ltd. is exempted from
Chinese mainland income tax for two years commencing
1st January 2002.

Other major Chinese mainland subsidiaries of the Group
in Shenzhen, Beijing and Huiyang are exempted from
Chinese malinland income tax for two to three years
commencing 1st January 2001 and a 50% Chinese
mainiand income tax reduction for the foliowing three
years.

RPERENMBLREFE THEREMSG
BT EE

S ERAFRBE-_ETZF+A=
+-RECRAEEEERBARRBHESRS
K7 .5% o

EEDRENEABRATE TR =53

—BREREEITRAEMEHRASE -

Hppt Ryl AR EBEE 2 EEDEAENE
REAAZEE-F-A-HERRTEAE
R AEEZERERZFETREAERS
BB+ eEE -
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8 Staff costs EE KA

2003 2002

HK$'000 HK$'000

ABTR BETT

Wages, salaries and bonuses HEN R AL 581,465 578,581

Social securities costs HERERA 42,858 24,187

Pension costs (Note (b)) RIRBLR (B932p) 41,218 28,664

Others =) 89,898 88,543

755,437 719,975

Notes: BEE

(@ Included in the above balance are the staff costs of (a tiﬂi%?ﬁ@%%’rk%ﬁ%%%(Bﬁ?zl(b))WZ Ik

HK$688,519,000 (2002: HK$674,920,000) which are
included in operating expenses (Note 4(b)).

The Group contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme and respective local municipal government
retirement schemes which are available to all qualified
employees in Hong Kong and Chinese mainland respectively,
Contributions to these schemes are calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ saiaries, bonuses and
allowances.

The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the profit
and loss account represents contributions payable by the
Group to the schemes.

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Forfeited contributions totalling
HK$352,811 (2002: HK$247,178) were utilised during the
year leaving no amount available at the year end to reduce
further contributions. The assets of the defined contribution
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

ARAEHES88,519,000(= ZE B

674,920,0007T) ©

EHEERHBRARSET BRI BT R R &5
PERHEK - HEERNTRAEAERERSY
L8 - ZEHEZHADBHEEE Y  EAR
ZEIEBOLLEE -

ERERNGR 2 RASHEIRTEERARNZETE
BN Z 5K -

REBERBSEERIR Y FHBHREBIMLK
ZEFEAERIEBZHR SRR HEREHE

352811 (T T E « 247 1787T) BHRE
RER - NELRATESHTEFIREE-—SRE
HE - TRERGTEZEEREEEESHE
5 ABUERCzERRE -




8 Staff costs continues 8 {EE}&Z‘K &
Commencing 1st December 2000, the Group’s Hong Kong B-TETFE+_F—BE FEEZEBERE
employees are required to contribute 5% of their basic salary RESEZEFATEERRSZU Z5%EHER(E
plus cash allowances {subject to the ceiling under the TR LEESEG T EBRERZHAR) - MER
requirements set out in the Mandatory Provident Fund EvREERAERTHE  BEX2HRUD A
legislation) whereas the employer’s contribution is at 7.5% 7.5%510% °
and 10% respectively after completion of five and ten years

of service.
9 Emoluments of directors and highest paid 0 BEREEEATCEHS
individuals
(a) The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to @ TR FLAFZESWSEENT

directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

Independent
Directors non-executive directors
®= BYKBTES
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR AETT BT BETIT

Fees we - - 375 360
Other emoluments: HAafghs -
Basic salaries, allowances E% - 28R

and benefits-in-kind EYFZ 20,667 33,270 - -
Retirement benefit costs BB 339 386 - -

21,006 33,656 375 360

Certain directors of the Company have been granted
options to acquire shares of the Company.

The emolumenits of the directors disclosed above do not
include the benefits derived or to be derived from the
options granted under the Company’s share option
schemes. Details of the share options granted to and/or
exercised by the directors are disclosed on page 52.

ETESCERERE  UREZLEZB

{/\ °

EXBBEZEENS T TRERBEARFER
EBEToEREL RS  BRTESER o
RERTRZBRE HETIREESE -




109

9 Emoluments of directors and highest paid

individuals continusd

BEERBEHFALZEHSE o

(b) The number of directors whose emoluments fall within k) BEEHSBERAEMAT :
the following bands are as follows:
Independent
Directors non-executive directors
5B BUEHITES

HK$ B 2003 2002 2003 2002
From 0 to 1,000,000 F%1,000,000 - 1 3 2
From 2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001%2,500,000 i - - -
From 3,500,001 to 4,000,000 3,500,001%4,000,000 - 1 - -
From 4,000,001 to 4,500,000 4,000,001%4,500,000 1 1 - -
From 5,500,001 to 6,000,000 5,500,001%6,000,000 1 1 - -
From 7,500,001 to 8,000,000 7,500,001%8,000,000 - 1 - -
From 8,000,001 to 8,500,000 8,000,001%8,500,000 1 - - -
From 11,500,001 to 12,000,000 11,500,001£12,000,000 - 1 - -
4 6 3 2

{c)  Among the five highest paid employees, four (2002: al))

are directors whose remunerations are included in the

directors’ emoluments above. The emoluments payable

(c) EINEGERHBZERET Mu(ZFT=
2HE)ARES  AMEERBARLUEEHS
e ERREGATFHT AL CETZF &)

to the remaining one (2002: nil) individual during the year ZHemT
are as follows:
2003 2002
HKS$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits-in-kind & - 2B R EHF|25 2,079 -
Retirement benefit costs RIRER B A 158 -

2,237 -
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11

Profit attributable to shareholders

Included in the profit of HK$1,017,152,000 (2002:
HK$1,044,300,000) attributable to shareholders of the
Company is the profit of HK$1,095,610,000 (2002:
HK$752,933,000), which is dealt with in the Company’s own
accounts.

10 BEREGERR

FRERRZ EEEFEE1,017,152 000 (ZFE
T FE,044,800,0007T) BEFIALDEIER N
ZHFERA 095,610,000 (ZFEF : B
752,833,0007%) °

Dividends , 1M1 BRE
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
Interim dividend FHARR R
1.8 HK cents per share FREFEHE1 8L
(2002: 1.5 HK cents) (CBEBF  EE50) 135,034 112,846
Proposed final dividend BERRERE ’
3.0 HK cents per share ERRERE3.0Ml
(2002: 3.6 HK cents) (ZZTF : B¥360) 224,040 270,242
Proposed special dividend BIRFFIRE
5.2 HK cents per share BREAE%S 210
(2002: nil) (ZBT-F . &\E) 388,337 -
747,411 383,088

At a board meeting held on 28th May 2003, the directors
recommended a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share and
a special dividend of 5.2 HK cents per share. These proposed
dividends are not reflected as dividends payable in these
accounts, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
earnings for the year ended 31st March 2003,

RIZEZE=FRA-1+/\BERZEZSE L EZF
EETRSREE3.0IZ KRR E REREES 21
ZERIRLE - BRI EXERRAUFERIEL B
TREAR  EERBRRBEZEE=E=A=+—H
LEBEZRBERNSR -




12 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based

on the following:

12 SRER

EREAREERENBE T RETE

2003 2002
Earnings for the purposes of basic AUHEERESR
and diluted earnings REERNZEF
per share (HK$'000) GE¥ET T 1,017,152 1,044,900
Weighted average number of AU EGRER
shares for the purposes of basic BRIz T
earnings per share AR &k 7,504,340,579 7,539,152,694
Effect of potential dilutive shares EEEERD 9,827,387 36,580,910
Weighted average number of shares BUsTEEREE
for the purposes of diluted earnings &R 2 NETFE
per share AR 2L 7,514,167,966 7,575,733,604
13 Intangible assets 13 BREE
Group
£
Goodwill Patent Total
wE SR St
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TR BT T BETR
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHTB A 93,414 42,453 135,867
Amortisation charge HEER (7,483) (7,783) (15,246)
As at 31st March 2003 R-_BEZEFE=F=4—8 85,951 34,670 120,621
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14 Tangible fixed assets 14 BREEEE
Group
%0
Land use
rights,
leasehold
land and  Leasehold Furniture
buildings  improve-  Plantand and Office Motor
(Note (a)) ments  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
LibfE '
BE -8R

THEEF  AAUE BE  GRR BAE
(M) 3 R#H KB B4 3 ait
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BETL  R¥TR  RETR BETn BETR A%TR ARTR

Costs RE
At 1st April 2002 H_ETZFRNA-E 473,123 128,106 91918 9929 342,708 22,274 1,069,053
Exchange adjustment SHNERE - 3 - 292 259 % 650
Additions HE 1,244 5,304 2,373 6,848 107,068 2871 125,708
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR - - 10,803 504 19,692 326 31415
Transfer from eI

construction-in-progress B3 - 20,991 6,106 954 10,677 - 38,728
Disposals e {4,810) (17,339) (20,524) {1,508) (6,279) (743) (51,203}
At 31st March 2003 RIBE=F

ZF=+-18 469,557 138,065 90,676 17,109 474,120 24,824 1,214,351

Accumulated depreciation  EifiTE

At 1st April 2002 RZBE_FERE-F 37,948 21,397 16,716 4414 128,832 12,430 221,737
Exchangs adjustment NERE - - - 155 125 a2 312
Charge for the year REEHE 31,406 29,400 12,692 4830 79,259 2,717 160,304
Acquisition of subsidiaries HEMBLE - - 1,984 80 2,275 49 4,388
Disposals HE (957) (9,645) (1,524 (1,034) (4,520) (686) (18,366)
At 31st March 2003 ATFE=E

=A=+-8 68,397 41,152 29,868 8,445 205,971 14,542 368,375
Net book value BEEE
At 31st March 2003 RIZE=E

ZE=T-E 401,160 96,913 60,808 8,664 268,149 10,282 845,976
At 31st March 2002 B —&

=5=Z1-F 435,175 107,709 75,202 5515 213,871 9,844 847,316




14 Tangible fixed assets conines 14 BREEEEE »

Company
AL
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Office Motor
ments fixtures equipment vehicles Total
EiE Ok GRR BRE
% %E #E RE &it

HKS'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BRI ERTR BETR BRTR ERTR

Costs HE

At 1st Apri 2002 BIBE_FLE-E 4,890 680 3,483 330 9,383
Additions RE 2,325 213 36,569 1232 40,339
Disposals = (4,890) (235) (274) - (5,399)
At 31st March 2003 RIZEZEZJ=1-B 2,325 658 39,778 1,562 44,323
Accumulated depreciation Rl

At 1st April 2002 R-EE-EMA-H 3,658 332 2,110 114 6,214
Charge for the year TEEHE 1,332 124 537 172 2,165
Disposals HE {4,671) {141 (244 - (5,056)
At 31st March 2003 RZEE=FZF=+-H 319 315 2,403 286 3,323
Net book value FEEE

At 31st March 2003 KWZEEZF=F=1+-1 2,006 343 37,375 1,276 41,000

At 31st March 2002 RIZE-E-A=+-H 1,232 348 1,373 218 3,169




14 Tangible fixed assets conined 14 BREEEE »

{a) The net book value of land use rights, leasehold land and (a) THESRE BOHTHEREBEFZEREFER
buildings comprises: ¥
Group
£8
Chinese
. Hong Kong mainland Total
58 o B AR &t
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKEO00
BEMTRT BETI BETR E¥TIT B¥TT E¥TT

Long leases RHESOYE

(not less than 50 years) (TLRAET%) - 3,916 - - - 3,916
Medium leases HREATR A

(less than 50 years (LRETH

but not less than 10 years) BT LR+E)

401,160 431,259 401,160 431,259

- 3,816 401,160 431,259 401,160 435,175

15 Construction-in-progress 15 ERIR
Construction-in-progress comprises: ERIRERE:
Group
58
Properties under
development Others Total
BEPYE Hit &5t
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETRA AT BETR EBTT BBTR EETT

At the beginning of the year %) 24,453 49,115 19,413 50,869 43,866 199,984
Exchange adjustment INERE - 1,406 - 507 - 1,913
Additions RNE 123,226 143,532 45,774 43,5621 169,000 187,053
Transfer to tangible BEEK

fixed assets ExgE (17,572) (269,600) (21,156) (67,451) (38,728) (337,051)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMBATE - - - (8,033) - (8,033)
At the end of the year FEir 130,107 24,453 1,031 19,413 174,138 43,866

No interast expenses were capitalised in construction-in- B BUREERIREZFESIHTFUERK-

progress at the balance sheet date.




16 Subsidiaries
(@) Investments in subsidiaries

16 MELH
(a) REEATZRE

Company

nHE
2003
HK$'000
BETR

2002
HK$'000
BT

Unlisted shares, at cost JEL-TIRRD © KAE

2,327,875 2,327,875

The following includes the principal subsidiaries of the Company
which were directly and indirectly held by the Company and,
in the opinion of the directors, significant to the resulis of the
year or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
The directors considered that giving details of other subsidiaries
would result in particulars of excessive length.

THEEREAREEREREREZ T ENBE LR -
EERRZENMBARNAEEEEREAER X
ERASEEEFELHT—REEEHS - EERAH
S EMMBLRZERESIHEELE -

Place of Issued and Effective
incorporation/ fully paid percentage
Company name establishment up capital holding Principal activities
B3z ERITR
DNE BB B HMERDG RO ER FEEK
2003 2002
Held directly:
BEEHE
Legend (Beijing) Limited Chinese mainland HK$78,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and
BRULR)BRAT el N pde distribution of
computer products
and provision of
IT services
SR HEMER
KRBT
Legend (Shanghal) Co., Ltd.  Chinese mainland HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of

AR (L8 BRAE

PEORRE

ks

computer products

and provision of

IT services
DHEMERREHSR

TR
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16 [_{ﬁ» /-\—.I"
(a) RMBARZRE #

16 Subsidiaries continued
(a) Investments in subsidiaries continved

Place of Issued and Effective
incorporation/ fully paid percentage
Company name establishment up capital holding Principal activities
ML EBTR
DNEER b B #BrBG EE R R TEEH
2003 2002
Held indirectly:
FERE
Beijing Legend Software Limited* Chinese HK$5,000,000 100% 100% Provision of IT services
RS EIR A F mainland o and distribution of
FEARE IT products
RETREESETER
Han Consulting (China) Ltd.” Chinese US$6,000,000 51% - Provision of IT services
BEEERER (FH) mainland EP and distribution of
BIRAE R iT products
BHTRERSHETER
Huiyang Legend Industry Chinese US$2,045,500 100% 100% Property holding
Property Limited™ mainiand = and property
BEMETIENERRAF R A RE management
BEREEDE
Legend Al Computer Chinese RMB10,000,000 70% - Provision of [T services
Technology Co., Ltd.” mainiand AR REITERIS
BB Sﬁé% B AR
BIRERS
Legend (Chengdu) Limited Chinese RMB12,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of
BB (K ED) BRA " mainland AREE computer products
FEARE and provision of

IT services
DIHEBRERREE
TERTS




16 Subsidiaries contiusd 16 MIBAR &

(a) Investments in subsidiaries continues (@) RHBATRIZRE &
Place of Issued and Effective
incorporation/ fully paid percentage
Company name establishment up capital holding Principal activities
R,/ EERTR
DRIRE T BERHA BB EE TEXEH
2003 2002
LLegend Chinaweal System & Chinese US$2,500,000 95.1% - Provision of IT services
Service Co., Ltd. mainiand E and distribution of
HREPERSREERD A R AR IT products
RETRBERIBTER
Legend Computer System and Chinese RMB7.,500,000 100% - Provision of [T services
Technology Service Co., Ltd,” mainland ARE and distribution of
B B ESRBEER AR AR A BE IT products
RETRBRIBTER
Legend Computer Systems Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Procurement agent and
BESKESRERLAH 5 il distribution of computer
products
RERERSH
ERER
Legend (Huiyang) Electronic Chinese HK$16,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Industrial Co., Ltd. mainland it computer products
EEHEETIZERAT R AR HEZHER
Legend Industrial Development Chinese US$10,000,000 100% 100% Property holding and
Co., (Daya Bay) Ltd. mainiand T property management
BEIEFELUR(ADE RAE EaE NS BEREEYR
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16 HIEAE »
(@) NWBELARZERE &

16 Subsidiaries continuea
{a) Investments in subsidiaries continued

Piace of Issued and Effective
incorporation/ fully paid percentage
Company name establishment 2 capital holding Principal activities
i/ JBTR
CECL Bk . BREf® B HER TEER
2003 2002
Legend Mobile Communication Chinese RMB187,500,000 80.8% - Manufacturing and
Co., L1d.* (formerly known as mainiand AR distribution of
Legend Xoceco (Xiamen) Mobile R BARE mobile handsets
Communication Technology RERDELD TR
Co., Ltd.)
HABDBEREERAR
(AiisB s = (EP)
BEBABRERDA)
Legend (Shenyang) Limited Chinese RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of computer
#18 (25 ER LA maintand AR products and provision
PEAE of T services
SHBHERKERETRE
Legend (Shenzhen) Electronic Chinese RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of computer
Co., Ltd” mainland AR products
BRERINETERAT PR AR SHBRER
Legend (Wuhan) Limited Chinese RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of computer
BB (B ERLE mainland ARE products and provision
R AR of IT services
SEBREMRER
ITER%
Legend (Xi An) Limited* Chinese RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of computer
BE(ER)ERLF mainland ARE products and provision
FEARE of IT services
NHEMERREH
TR
Shanghai Legend Electronic Chinese RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Co., Lid~ mainiand ARE computer products
LEHBEEFERRE HEAE BEEHESR




18 Subsidiaries continves 16 MELAT =

(i) All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective places of incorporation or establishment.

(i) All Chinese mainland subsidiaries are limited liability
companies. They have adopted 31st December as their

financial year end date for statutory reporting purposes.
For preparation of the consolidated accounts, accounts
of these subsidiaries for the 12 months ended 31st
March 2002 and 2003 have been used.

iy The company whose name with a
transliteration of its Chinese registered name.

(b)

wan

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

is a direct

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no

(a) Investments in subsidiaries continved (a) REBERBZRE &
Place of Issued and Effective
incorporation/ fully paid percentage
Company name establishment up capital holding Principal activities
B,/ CBITR
NEER e HRERG BiEROESR TEEH
2003 2002
QD! Europe B.V. The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100% Distribution of
HH B computer products
SHERER
Quantum Designs (H.K.) Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary 100% 100% Procurement agent
Limited &% and HK$1,000,000 and distribution of
non-vating deferred computer products
BBt EARRK RERERSH
#1,000,0007T BiRESR
LERERELR
Yang Guang Yu Lu Chinese RMB20,000,000 100% - Provision of repair
Information Technology mainland AE® services for computer
Service (Beijing) Co., Ltd.” FEIARE hardware and
BrRER SR software systems
BBEGR ERAE BEEMBEGR
HHEGS
Notes: K

() FTELMMBLARYEEEAZTMEKT

BRAE -

(i) FRIETFEAENNEASGRERELR
g - RIEPEXEEE  PEAEASNE
FET_AZ+-BREEEH - BEEHE -
LEER-_ZTERFHEAKRER - %FN
BoRREAENERRBEAREZR=1T—
B+ EANEIE -

(i) nEBWEHE DEZAEMEIIE

X4 -

Bl () MBATRK
ILERBEER - RFE REETEMNEL o



Notes to the Accounts | §& B Fif i

120

17 Investments in jointly controlled entities

17 RERZHERZRE

Group
&=
2003
HK$'000
BYTT

2002
HK$°000
AETT

Share of net assets

PG AERE

198,549 210,432

The following is a list of the principal jointly controlled entities
at 31st March 20083:

Place of
incorporation/

UTAR-EBE=E=AZ+ Bz EARZHE
BEE:

Interest held

Company name establishment indirectly Principal activities
i,/
RNEERB o 17 i B HESEER TEXEWR
2003 2002
FM365.com Limited British Virgin Islands 51% 51% Investment holding
(Note Bzt (1) REEMAES company of Internet
services business
HEELBEER
ZIEBER AR
Leby Technology Company  British Virgin Islands 50% 50% Investment holding
Limited (Note (1) EBERRED company of contract
SRR FRDR (HH) manufacturing business
WEERBEHTE
ZIEER AT
Notes:

M

(i)

(it

Although the Group holds 51% issued share capital of
FM385.com Limited, its board is jointly controlled by the
Group and a joint venturer such that it is regarded as & jointly
controlled entity. This company holds 100% equity interests
in AOL-Legend (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. (formerly known
as Beijing Legend FM 385 Technology Limited) which
provides internet services in Chinese mainland.

This jointly controlled entity holds 100% equity interests in
Hui Yang Legend Computer Co., Ltd. which manufactures
computer products in Chinese mainland.

The company whose name with a “*” is a direct transliteration
of its English registered name.

Fta

)  ERTEEFBFM365.com LimitedZ51%E #77
BA - BEEEEREHAEEEE—SEERAR
ZH - RERA—RAREHEE - LR EHE
BB (k) BIRER AR (IR RBE =
ARBARLT)M100%5E - EXBERAED
EAEREEEELRS -

(i UREEGIEZERSEBBEAEEETRAAN
100% M4 EXEXEBATEREAEMEEKE

ou]
amg °

iy DEEBEHEE DESFEZMECIEXE
=l
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Investments in associated companies

18 REELRZRE

Group
5B

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T

Share of net assets AR FE 99,813 152,972
Unsecured loan repayable on demand BERER  REXHES 1,800 51,834
101,613 204,806

As at 31st March 2003, the loan to an associated company is
interest-free (2002 a loan of HK$50,084,000 was bearing interest
at prime rate minus 0.5% per annum while the remaining loans

were interest-free).

The following is a list of the principal associated companies at

31st March 2003:

Place of
incorporation/

ROBRZEFEZRAZ+ B EXRTHMELAREZEREN

© —IEE 50,034,000t 2 ER

CRERE

REEENER0L%  EHERELFEM) -

ROFBZF=ZR=+—BZEEHERTNT

Interest held

Company name establishment indirectly Principal activities
REER B B it B BEREER FEER
2003 2002
Beijing CA - Legend Chinese mainland 20% 20% Software development
Software Co., Ltd* SE NS GRSk
I REERENGER AT
Legend Kingsoft Holdings British Virgin Islands 30% 30% Distribution and development
Limited EBHEBRES of software
e LR ER A" FHEEEERG
Techwise Circuits Company Hong Kong 30.5% 30.5% Procurement agent and
Limited &% distribution of printed
MEEEERAE circuit boards
REARERS HRBR
The Affiliated High School Chinese mainland 49% 49% Operation of education
of Peking University & AR B R B portal
Legend Remote mERE R

Education Co., Ltd.*
b A KMy BB R T2
HEHRAE
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18 [nvestment in associated companies continved 18 RBEERARIZBRE »
Notes: BT
)  The associated companies operate principally in their () BREESLEEERAAEENAPEAREZEHN -
respective places of incorporation or establishment, except HELREENRES G2 M EA IR -

for Legend Kingsoft Heldings Limited which operates
principally in Chinese mainland.

(i) The company whose name with a “*” is a direct transliteration iy RAREEHE DEESEMEEZPE
of its Chinese/English registered name. &R -
19 Investment securities 19 BERE
Group Company
& A E)
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT AETT BT BETT

Equity securities, at fair value fEAREH - nFE

Listed in Hong Kong NEELEM 52,172 238 37,880 -
Listed outside Hong Kong MEBERI LT 2,257 19,271 - -
54,429 19,509 37,890 -

Unlisted FET 19,220 11,253 - -

73,649 30,762 37,880 -




20 Inventories
Group
£
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETRT BETIT
Raw materials BEi 873,090 395,518
Work-in-progress &R 26,975 18,175
Finished goods SR G 368,986 441,826
1,269,051 855,519
At 31st March 2003, the carrying amount of inventories that RIEBR=F=Z A=+ 8UERFEVEZFE

ZREEES EBEE79,785,0000 (BB F « B
43,094 ,0007T) °

are carried at net realisable value amounted to HK$79,785,000
(2002: HK$43,094,000).

21 Accounts receivable 21 EWERER
(@) Trade receivables (a) BUREIER

R-ZEBE=ZFZR=+—80 RBUREZEIZ
BREsofm T

At 31st March 2003, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables was as follows:

Group
£B8

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

0 - 30 days EZE=+H 490,851 593,457
31 - 60 days =Z+—HEXRTH 27,213 58,914
61 - 90 days AT—BEZA+A 10,680 5,715
Over 90 days A+BHE 24,772 2,651
553,516 660,737
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21

22

23

Accounts receivable continved

(a) Trade receivables continued
Customers are generally grani
Credit terms for customers oi
normally range from 30 day

{b) Notes receivable of trading
with maturity dates of with

Cash and bank balances
Included in the cash and banhk
Renminbi cash and bank depc
approximately HK$802,124,00(

Accounts payable

(@) Trade payables
At 31st March 2003, t
payables was as follow

0 - 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
Over 90 days

(b) Notes payable of trading -
three months.

redit terms of 30 days.
m integration business
80 days.

re are bills of exchange
onths.

Y

ses of the Group are
Chinese mainland ¢
4K$746,392,000).

J analysis of the t

21

22

23

FEW R =

(a) EBUBZER o
HEREZBIKNES  KREFERFFE
BI0E1BORMEEEHESN  EREF—RE
E3OXREAH -

(b) ERZMENBUERIHANEARISBZESR

ReERBITES - £0
FERZRSRETHEST  BEEREARZAR
BEIE S RIRTTTERA) B/E1802,124,000T (ZEE
£ 5 #746,392,0007T) °

FE SRR TR
(8) FEAH SR
R-TEZF=A=+-B ENERENZ

BEAHIT :
Group
£H
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BETF T
FE=+Q 1,339,852 916,319
=+—z~+8 149,535 177,413
A+—EA+E 20,870 27,433
A+EE 78,375 30,785
1,588,632 1,151,950

.re repayable within

(b) BEZUENENEBRERZBANER -




24 Deferred taxation

24 RIEFIE

Group Company
£ AT
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BB BETRT BETT
Balance at the beginning ENERR
of the year 330 353 304 304
Transferred from profit and HEEXEE
loss account (Note 7) (B15E 7) - (23) - -
Balance at the end of the year FREH 330 330 304 304
25 Share capital 25 B
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each
EERERER0.0257T
2003 2002
Number Number
of shares HK$’000 of shares  HK$'000
RA%E BETT fRing e BETT
Authorised: EERE
At the beginning and the FEYRER
end of the year 20,000,000,000 500,000 20,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BBETRMERE
At the beginning of the year £1) 7,508,038,108 187,701 7,513,962,108 187,849
Exercise of share options (Note (a))  11{EEERE (Bit(a)) 656,000 16 66,302,000 1,658
Repurchase of shares (Note (b)) BEn (8 #0) (31,330,000) {(783) (72,226,000) (1,806)
At the end of the year FLR 7,477,364,108 186,934 7,508,038,108 187,701




25

26

Share capital continues
Notes:

(a)  During the year, 656,000 shares were issued at HK$2.876
each as a result of the exercise of share options of the
Company.

(b) During the year, the Company repurchased 31,330,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited at an aggregate consideration of
HK$79,399,00C.

Share coptions

Under the Company's employee share option scheme adopted
on 18th January 1994 (“Old Option Scheme”), the Company
granted options to employees (including directors) of the
Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. Options granted are
exercisable at any time during a period of ten years from the
date upon which the option is accepted. The subscription price
of the option shares is the higher of the nominal value of the
shares and an amount which is 80% of the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date on which the offer is made. The Old Option
Scheme was terminated on 26th April 2002. Despite the fact
that no further options may be granted thereunder, all other
provisions of the Old Option Scheme will remain in force to
govern the exercise of all the options previously granted.

On 25th March 2002, an ordinary resolution approving the
adoption of a new share option scheme (“New Option Scheme”)
was passed by shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company.

25

26

B g
ER

@ ER EFRQRAZBREEBTEMERSRES
2.87671 2 BI&EE17656,00008 A% 15 -

(o) &R ARFEREEET9,300,000THE B
AL BFEROTEDRT 330,000 B EESE
0.025T 2 FiEAR ©

B

BEALFIR-NANRE- AT\ BERZBRET
B ([EEREHRE]) FZRFERTALRRENE
REZER (BREE)BRE - BRESSZ TSHEE
ERBBRBETRAZ10%  RHZBREGENE
e B THERMERITE  BRERGZRE
B ZROBEIEEBERERLRBATERSA
RN FEHRTESONMERZBESEE - BEB
RITER ZSEFNATANBERLE - BTIEE
ERREAEE-SRLBEREN  BERREAEZ
FrE Bt RSUBBIER T UEBERRIBILREZ2
plive Solatidy

RIBETZFZA-+HE  BRERTRRRFEF
RE LR RAE R ERE 8 (T3 AR
BZERREER -




3w

26 Share options continves 26 BERE s

Under the New Option Scheme, the Company may grant RIEFRERETE - ARAAASERAT (EBRE
options to qualified participants as defined in the Report of the EeREE)ETEBENRERQBRRD HEFR2
Directors to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a DEE ™MEHEARAFBREN S BHEALREE
maximum of 10% of the issued share capital of the Company TR Z10% « MLMERENTEZENEREER
as at the date of adoption of the New Option Scheme. Options RETTEREAERITE  BIE 2 TEE DRRE
granted are exercisable at any time during a period of ten years LEERMZWHE  BEEREASAERSE2
from the date upon which the option is accepted. The BOFAUTERBO2EEZEREETE

subscription price of the option shares is the highest of the
closing price of the shares on the date of grant; the average of
the closing prices of the shares for the five trading days
immediateiy preceding the date of grant; and the nominal value

of the sharss.

Movements in the number of share opticns outstanding during ERERITEERESRBEENT
the year are as follows:

2003 2002

Number Number

of shares of shares

BO®E BRHEE

At the beginning of the year &) 292,992,000 196,436,000
Granted during the year (Note (a)) FERFEL (#53a) 52,806,000 167,800,000
Exercised during the year (Note (b)) FERTE B b)) (656,000)  (66,302,000)
Lapsed during the year (Note (c)) ERR (FEC) - (4,942,000)

At the end of the year FR 345,142,000 292,992,000




26 Share Options continueo
(a) Details of share options granted during the year
were as follows:

26 HERE g

(a) FRAB/HZBREFIFNOT

2003 2002
Number Number
Exercise period Exercise price of shares of shares
TEHE TEE REEE B e E
. HK$
BT
16.4.2001 - 15.4.2011 4.072 - 35,550,000
29.8.2001 - 28.8.2011 2.904 - 1,006,000
31.8.2001 - 30.8.2011 2.876 - 131,244,000
10.10.2002 — 09.10.2012 2.435 52,806,000 -
52,806,000 167,800,000
(b) Details of share options exercised during the year (b) FARTEZEREIFTOT
were as follows:
()  Year 2003 ()  2003FRA
Market value
per share at Number Proceeds
Exercise date Exercise price exercise date of shares received
TEBEEZ
TR TEE gRME REBE CBRHAEBIRE
HKS$ HKS$ HKS
AT BT BT
2.4.2002 2.876 3.33 88,000 253,088
8.5.2002 2.876 3.35 270,000 776,520
10.6.2002 2.876 3.20 298,000 857,048
656,000 1,886,656
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26 Share Oplions continued
Details of share options exercised during the year

(b)

were as follow: continued

26 BRE g

(b)y FRITEZBREFENT : 2

)

(i) Year 2002 iy 2002F A
Market value
per share at Number Proceeds
Exercise date Exercise price exercise date of shares received
TEBHZ
GRcA=E TEE BRTE RiHgE BUWAREFIE
HKS HK$ HKS
BT BB BET
18.4.2001 0.458 5.25 32,000,000 14,688,000
9.10.2001 - 31.10.2001 2.876 3.10-3.22 124,000 356,624
1.11.2001 - 30.11.2001 2.876 2,92 - 3.47 2,486,000 7,149,736
3.12.2001 - 30.12.2001 2.876 3.38-3.95 2,094,000 6,022,344
7.1.2002 — 31.1.2002 2.876 3.58 -4.22 1,932,000 5,656,432
1.2.2002 - 11.2.2002 2.876 3.22 -3.60 1,274,000 3,664,024
31.1.2002 2.904 3.60 174,000 505,296
9.4.2001 - 17.4.2001 4,038 5.35-5.45 25,616,000 103,437,408
3.7.2001 4.038 5.05 96,000 387,648
12.4.2001 - 25.4.2001 4,312 5.25-5.85 256,000 1,103,872
7.5.2001 - 24.5.2001 4,312 550-6.35 246,000 1,060,752
20.6.2001 4,312 4.95 4,000 17,248
66,302,000 143,949,384

LEGEND ANNUAL REPORT 2002 /03 BHEFH
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26 Share Options continued

(c} Details of share options lapsed during the year

were as follows:

26 BRE
() EARAXMBREIFBLT:

2003 2002
Number Number
Exercise period Exercise price of shares of shares
T TEE RGEE fefn 8B
HK$
BT
28.1.2000 - 27.1.2010 4.038 - 928,000
15.1.2001 — 14.1.2011 4.312 - 2,416,000
31.8.2001 - 30.8.2011 2.876 - 1,598,000
- 4,942,000
(d) Details of share options at the balance sheet date (dy REEBZBREFEOT
were as follows:
2003 2002
Number Number
Exercise period Exercise price of shares of shares
TEEM ITEE RiEE Bing 8
HK$
BT
Old Option Scheme
BERESE
28.1.2000 - 27.1.2010 4.038 7,712,000 7,712,000
15.1.2001 — 14.1.2011 4312 127,162,000 127,162,000
16.4.2001 - 15.4.2011 4.072 35,550,000 35,550,000
28.8.2001 - 28.8.2011 2.904 832,000 832,000
31.8.2001 - 30.8.2011 2.876 121,080,000 121,736,000
292,336,000 292,992,000
New Option Scheme
s R 8
10.10.2002 - 9.10.2012 2.435 52,806,000 -
345,142,000 292,992,000




27 Share capital and reserves 27 BARFESE

Group
£0
Surplus Investment Share
Share Share  arisingon  Exchange revaluation redemption Accumulated
capital premium consolidation reserve reserve reserve fosses Total
SaRaR
BE RIEE EfzBH BLff REEHREE RODBEE 258 &3t

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A¥Tx  BETR  EETR EETR B¥TR AT BETR ERTx

As at 1t Aprl 2002 RZZEERR-F 187701 4,732,184 27,893 4,155 13515 1806 (1,285220) 3,682,034
Daficit in fair market value YRS

of investment securfiies - - - - {20,891) - - {20,891)
Exchange differences - - - 156 - - - 158
Reserves reafised upon disposal

of investment securities - - - - {7,120} - - {7,120}
Goodwill written off arising

from disposal of subsidiaries - - 129) - - - - 22)

Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,017,152 1,017,152
Exercise of share options fERRE 16 1,871 - - - - - 1,887
Repurchase of shares BERE (783) - - - - 783 179,399) (79,399)
Dividends paid 2fRE - - - - - - {405,276) (405,276}
As at 31st March 2003 RoBRE=FZRI+-A 186,934 4,734,055 27,871 4311 (14,496) 2,589 (752,743} 4,188,521
Representing: K&
2003 final dividend proposed BRE-2E=FR 204040
2003 special dividend proposed BE-SE=ERIRE 388,337
Others £ (1,365,120
Accumulated losses as at HIBEZFZEZ1-B

31st March 2003 TEHEE (752,743
Company and subsiciaries ARIRKBLRT 18603¢ 473405 27871 431 (14,496) 20580 (191 4221343
Jointly controlled entities KRERHER - - - - - - [27,704) (27,709
Associated companies 20N - - - - - - (5,118) (5,118)

As at 31st March 2003 AZEEZEZRIH-E 186,934 4,734,055 27,871 4311 {14,496) 2,589 (752,743 4,788,521
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27 Share capital and reserves continueo

Group
&8
Surplus Investment Share
Share Share  arising on Exchange  revaluation  redemption  Accumulated
caphal premium  consolidation reserve reserve reserve losses Total
GEREE
B BRiAsE EZzB% EifE BEAEREE RHDEHE FiTEH ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT E¥TR  BETR BETT BETR ERTR BRETR BETR
As at 1st April 2001 BZ2E-ERE-1 187,849 4,589,893 171,718 336 - - (1066871) 3882922
Reserves transfers REEE - - (166,719) - 63,001 - 103,628 -
Deficit in falr market value REEFLIME
of investment securities Big - - - - (36.058) - - 36,058)
Exchange difisrences BELES - - - 3819 - - - 3819
Reserves realised upon disposal HESHEEZ
of investment securtties SHE - - - - (13,518) - - (13,518}
Goodwil written back arsing from ~ HEREATH
disposal o n associated FEZ
company BB - - 22,897 - - - - 22,897
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - - 3044900 1,044,900
Exercise of share options TERRE 1,658 142,291 - - - - - 143,949
Repurchase of shares BEER (1,808) - - - - 1,806 (263,761 (263,761)
Dividends paid BARS - - - - - - (1103118 (1,108,116)
As at 31st March 2002 RIRT-£ZfZ+-H 187,701 4,732,184 27,893 4,155 13,615 1806 (1,285,220) 3,682,034
Representing: he 8
2002 finat dividend proposed BE-ET_EXHKE 271,051
Oters £ 1,556.271)
Accumulated losses as at RIFF-FZA=+-8
315t March 2002 ZENER {1,285,220)
Company and subsidiaries ARARKEAR 187,701 473,184 27,893 4,155 13,515 1806 (1,075955)  3.691,209
Jointly controlied entities KEEHER - - - - - - 8,468 8,468
Associated companies BIEAE - - - - - - (17,733 (17,733}
As at 31st March 2002 RZZE-£=AZ+-8 187,701 4,732,184 27,843 4,165 13,615 1806 (1.285220) 3,682,034




27 Share capital and reserves continuea

27 REBREE

Company
28
Investment Share
Share Share revaluation redemption Retained
capital pramium reserve reserve profits Total
Bx BHREE REEGEE RODBEES REMH )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTR BYETR BETT BETR BYTT BETR
As at 1st April 2002 187,701 4,732,184 - 1,808 863,305 5,784,996
Deficit in fair market value
of investment securities mEER - - 2,183 - - (2,183)
Profit for the year E ) - - - - 1,085,610 1,095,610
Exercise of share options TERRE 18 1,871 - - - 1,887
Repurchase of shares BERG (783) - - 783 (79,399) {79,399)
Dividends paid BRER - - - - (405,276} (405,276)
As at 31st March 2003 RIBBZEZF=1-H 186,934 4,734,055 (2,183 2,589 1,474,240 6,395,635
Representing: &
2003 final dividend proposed HE-FT=ERGHE 224,040
2003 special dividend proposed BRIk ZREZFEHIIR L 388,337
Others B4 861,863
Retained profits as BIEEZEZRZ+-8
at 31st March 2003 ZRE BT 1,474,240
As at 1st April 2001 RIBE-£15-8 187,849 4,589,893 - - 1,368,118 6,145,860
Revaluation surplus on AAFRNEEEmE
spin-off of DCHL Graup BB - - 109,131 - - 109,131
Reserves transfers FEER - - {109,131) - 109,131 -
Profit far the year FRER - - - - 752,33 752,933
Exercise of share options fTEERE 1,658 142,291 - - - 143,949
Repurchase of shares BERRH (1,806) - - 1,806 (263,761) (263,761}
Dividends paid ER&E - - - - (1,103,116} (1,103,118)
As at 31st March 2002 WZFE-EZF=+-H 187,701 4,732,184 - 1,806 863,305 5,784,996
Representing: K&
2002 final dividend proposed BE-S2-ERERE 271,061
Others At 592,254
Retained profits as RZET-EZfA=+-E
at 31st March 2002 ZIRZEFH 863,305
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28 Related party transactions 28 HRALRE
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this set of accounts, the Group BREAREESEORBEN  ZEBETIELSH
had the following material related party transactions: ATRS
Group
£H
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$’000
BAETT BETT
AOL-Legend (Beijing) Technology ERARENEE (AL ) BIRRBR A
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Beijing (RiFEiL R Eﬁ?t@:/\ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁi &)
Legend FM365 Technology Limited) (—RERZHEE)
{a jointly controlled entity):
Technical consultancy fees HMEEEE 2,260 176
Beiiing Legend FM Science and RS AR RER A
Technology Company Limited (—REZRMBLRE) :
(a fellow subsidiary):
Account access fees BEFEAE 43,879 50,330

DCHL Group (associated companies of &/ K IH & B (LT F)

the ultimate holding company): MEE AT ¢

Rental and management fees EeREEER 2,163 2,813
Purchase of goods HEED 5,414 13,519
Sales of goods HEED 1,132 -

Hui Yang Legend Computer Co., Ltd. EEHEERERAT
{a subsidiary of a jointly (—RXERIZEHEBEENOHEBAR) -
controlled entity):
Rental and management fee HEeREERES 8,239 -




28 Related party transactions continuso

28 BBEALXZE =

Group
£8
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT AT
Leby Technology Company Limited BRI HER AT
(a jointly controlled entity): (—RAEFIZEHIER) -
Purchase of goods REEY 134,262 -
Manufacturing fee mI® 58,284 -
Sale of computer products HEBMER 31,094 -
Right Lane Limited BRGNS
(a substantial shareholder): (EERER) -
Rental and management fee EeREERER 960 1,020
Shenzhen Legend Science Park RYITB SR E AR AT
Company Limited (—RKEEHBLA)
(a fellow subsidiary):
Rental B 14,822 3,088
Techwise Circuits Company Limited MERBEERLRR
and its subsidiaries EWBLRGERFR) -
(associated companies):
Purchase of goods HEEW 51,232 15,255
Rental and management fee e hEEER 21,903 -
Xiamen Overseas Chinese EFEGETARLRA
Electronics Limited (—BEMBLAFTHLHEERE) -
(a minority shareholder of
a subsidiary):
Rental Ee 1,144 -
Purchase of goods FREY 32,368 -

The directors are of the opinion that the above transactions

were conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary BT

course of business.

EER L LA S NE-REBPRE - RERIER



29 Banking facilities 29 RITEE
At 31st March 2003, total banking facilities grar o the Group RZBEZFZA=Z+—R - £EBZHHBKRTE
amounted to approximately HK$2,620,000 0 which were E1aEEH) AEED 620,000,0007T + WA T EH—IF
secured by one or more of the following: 5 ZIEA AR ER
(a) Cross guarantees provided by certain st iaries; and (a) BETHBASEREZEEERR: &
{(0) Guarantess provided by the Company. (b) BRNEREZER-
At 31st March 2003, the amount of facilities ! by the MRIBB=FZF=+—0 xEECHEZEKETE
Group amounted to approximately HK$460,0 B854 5% %460,000,0007T °
30 Commitments 30 AE&¥E
{a) Capital commitments (a) BIERE
Group
£E
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR EETIT
Contracted but not provided for EETHERBE
property, plant and equipment Vg - R R 120,156 28,850
Investments BE - 183,082
120,156 211,932
Capital commitments for property, B £ LASR
plant and equipment of ZHENR 2 -
associated companies not MEREBEZER
included in the above AEAT
is as follows:
Contracted but not provided for EETHRFREE - 1,080
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30 Commitments continved
(b) Commitments under operating leases
At 31st March 2003, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings

30 &iE 4z
(b)

ERENEE
RZBE=Z=A=+—8  FEERTHE
Bzt REFIEERNT2RRSERS

under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: BEAT
Group
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BETT
Not later than one year THEBA—F 58,255 65,792
Later than one year but not —FERLF

later than five years 78,281 75,620
Later than five years BBEAEE 52,058 -
188,594 141,412

{c) Other commitments (c) EfhFEiE

(M

On 17th December 2002, two subsidiaries of the
Company, China Weal Technology Holdings Limited
(*CWT") and the shareholders of CWT entered into
an agreement in which the Company's subsidiaries
have committed to acquire certain business and
assets from CWT and its subsidiaries (the “CWT
Group”). The business and assets acquired were
injected into a newly incorporated Chinese mainland
subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to the agreement, the Group is required
to pay an initial consideration of approximately
HK$61 million, and an additional consideration
which is dependent on, among other things, proper
completion of certain reorganisation procedures,
and the operating results of the above-mentioned
new subsidiary of the Company up to 31st March
2008. The maximum amount of additional
consideration, if required, amounted to
approximately HK$156 million which will be settled
by phases before 31st October 2008.

®

RIERZETZATERE  KRERE
WBLR  TEMREERERRE
(JCWTD) RCWT 2 BRRET — R - &
it RABNE R A UEECWT AN
Borl([CWTRE)D MO EBREE -
WY 2B REED EARRRIERR
TZHBRERBAA -

BERE  ZRARNINERRELRE
61,000,0007T * RESMABAER (P 83E)
ETEERFIERZTRK - UEARAE Ll
FHBRREEETNE=A=+—H
ZREEEER - BIMUEZEBEED
A7E#156,000,0007T » BIMLE (NEX
R _BENE+B=+—HATHE
F e



bR R A RTINS T IR IR e R

30 Commitments continued 30 7%% i

(c) Other commitments continued (c) HMFAE &=
(i)  Asat 31st March 2003, the Group had outstanding (iy RZFEE=FE=F=+—8 F£EZEHF
foreign currency contracts amounted to ZHMNES QR LEAE R 46,000,0007T
approximately HK$46,000,000 (2002: (ZETZF : &¥56,000,0007T) °

HK$56,000,000).

31 Contingent liabilities 31 HARE
() The Company has executed guarantees with respect to (a) ARFEEETENRBRARAZEITREFELE
banking facilities made available 1o its subsidiaries. As at FoRIBE=FZASH—BERTEIRZ
31st March 2003, such facilities granted and utilised ER5R# AB%2,620,000,000T/ES
amounted to approximately HK$2,620,000,000 and 460,000,0007C (Z BT 4 : 7B#2,485,000,000
HK$460,000,000 respectively (2002: HK$2,485,000,000 TEANERE419,000,0007T) °

and HK$419,000,000).

(o) The Company has issued letters of guarantee to the (o) AXECFLBERSTEMBRAOHED - R
suppliers and vendors of its subsidiaries. As at 31st March ZEF=F-AZT-BEEYRIBZER
2003, the guarantee granted and utilised amounted to £ BI# 941,460,000 T I #570,000,000
approximately HK$941,460,000 and HK$570,000,000 TT(ZET-F  BF%854,000,000 T MEH
respectively (2002: HK$854,000,000 and 272,000,0007T) °

HK$272,000,000).




32 Reconciliation of operating profit before taxation 32 BRBEAIEERVNEBLLERMERSTFE

to net cash inflow from operations HERR
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS$'000
BETR BETT
Operating profit before taxation BRI AT R A 1,028,651 1,081,194
Share of (profits)/iosses of associated companies — EEBERFZ GBI /5t (13,826) 12,979
Share of losses/(profits) of jointly controlied entities  JEISERIFHEBRZEE,/ (EW 34,756 (8,468)
Interest income FEWA (77,233) (67,360)
interest expenses METH 20 11,785
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets HERETAENE 160,304 143,048
Amortisation of intangible asssts BREERS 15,246 -
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets HEEVETEEZER 3,110 1,440
Losses/(gains) on disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBELE  BERAFAR
an associated company and investment BERECER/
securities (M) 26,802 (164,240)
Operating profit before working capital changes BEBELRE BRI LEET 1,177,830 1,010,378
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEogm,my (411,997 261,620
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due ERERESBEBRTELD,/
from jointly controlled entities (8 194,132 (194,132)
Increase in tracle receivables, notes receivable, EWE SRR ERER 14 EFEE
deposits, prepayments and other receivables REM BRG] (287,263) (21,776)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, ERE SR Fg‘#$§ CEHERR
notes payable, accruals and other payables HismEttsEm, (5s) 477,373 (248,600)

Net cash inflow from operations EEEREREFE 1,150,075 805,490
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33 Analysis cf changes in financing 33 BMEZEDN
2003 2002

Share Loans and Share Loans and

capital finance capital finance

({including Minority lease  {including Minority lease

premium) interests  obligations premium) interests  obligations

Bx  JBBRR EIRREE BE  SVHRRE ERREE

(BfE%E B BNER  (BERED B HNEH

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETL BMTR  B%Tr  BETT  ERTR  EETR

Balance at the beginning of FER
the year 4,919,885 7,050 - 4777742 74,458 832,469
Minority interests” share of PEBRRERENEN
profits and exchange reserve RONERE - {14,519) - - 13,202 -
Increase in minority interests DPERRREEM - - - - 4,364 {4,364)
Increase in bank loans ROTEREN - - - - - 121,495
Disposal of subsidiaries HENELE - - - - (84.974)  (944,760)
Decrease in loans from PERERER
mincrity shareholders o - - - - - (4,840)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KENBLT - 67,210 - - - -
Issue of new sharss ESSE ) 1,887 - - 143,949 - -
Consideration for the REE
repurchase of shares ZRE {79,399) - - (263,761} - -
Repurchase of shares out of EREETF
retained profits R 78,616 - - 261,955 - -
Balance atthe end of the year ~ EREERE 4,920,989 59,741 - 4,919,885 7,050 -
34 Analysis of the balances of cash and cash 34 BeRERBRSEFEIN
equivalents
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$’000

BT BRI

Cash and bank balances BERETES 2,808,323 2 441,169




35 Disposal of subsidiaries

35 HEMBAT

2003 2002

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BT

Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Tangible fixed assets BErEmEE - 305,678
Construction-in-progress EEIE - 8,033
Trade receivables FEURESBER - 1,311,570
Inventories FE - 983,973
Deposits, prepayments and ®e - BNRER

other receivables E BN R - 205,692
Cash and bank balances RERBTES - 356,261
Trade and notes payable ERESERRRENER - (794,216)
Accruals and other payables FEEt B A REMENR - (449,398)
Bank loans RITEMN - (944,760)
Minority interests DERERE S - (84,974)
- 897,859

Gains on disposal HE R - 155,538
- 1,053,397

Satisfied by: FRARN

Cash and cash equivalents BeRERRE - 229,021
Dividends payable TR R - 808,538
Investments "4 - 70,899
Accruals ErTER - (55,061)

36 Analysis of the net outfiow of cash and caghy -

11,053,397

36 HEMEARFEZESREARLEE

equivalents in respect of the disposal of ) paiis
subsidiaries
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BET T
Cash consideration HeHE - 229,021
Cash and bank balances disposed of LEZREREITES - (356,261)
Net outflow of cash and cash HEMBAT
equivalent in respect of the MEZEER |
disposal of subsidiaries SERRSFE - L (127,240)
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37 Acquisition of subsidiaries 37 WEKEAR
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
Net assets acquired BlE  E
Tangible fixed assets BF &E 27,027 -
Inventories 7 1,535 -
Investment in an associated company i ARZBE 3,649 -
Trade and notes receivable ey RO RENEE 7,788 -
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables i TERTE B E A R U BR RN 25,730 -
Cash and bank balances ¥ TR 204,788 -
Trade and notes payable i IREREE (789) -
Accruals and other payables il hETBRER (20,538) -
Minority interests 8 : (67,210) -
181,980 -
Goodwill arising from acquisition W e HE 38,801 -
220,781 -
Satisfied by: A
Cash and cash equivalents g 199,941 -
Other payables H 20,840 -
220,781 -
38 Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash eqt 38 WEBHWELRMBREREAHAEF
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries B
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$' 000
BET T BET T
Cash consideration (199,941) -
Cash and bank balances acquired RITEEER 204,788 -
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents WHEMBARMERER
in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries ERBEFEE 4,847 -
39 Ultimate holding company 39 BRARERATR
The directors regard EtfBIZAR B R 22 8] (Legend Holdings Limited), EERAMETRERA S DREITIRAT -
a company established in Chingse mainland, as being the ultimate FHARRFERERT
holding company.
40 Approval of accounts 40 FREZ®E
The accounts were approved by the board of directors on 28th May AEECHRESEN _TEE=FRA_-+NH

2008. % e
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37 Acquisition of subsidiaries 37 WERBHEAR
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Net assets acquired Eﬂﬁlﬁ\%ggé ‘
Tangible fixed assets BF meiE 27,027 -
Inventories 7 1,535 ~
Investment in an associated company Popps p R 2 BE 3,649 -
Trade and notes receivable B e s BRI ER 7,788 -
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables £ie . pNFCARAMREEERR 25,730 ~
Cash and bank balances fﬁé&:ﬁﬁﬁ g 204,788 -
Trade and notes payable ENEsERE ﬁmf (789) -
Accruals and other payables R+ BB R s METER (20,538) -
Minority interests LEREREE (67,210) -
181,980 -
Goodwill arising from acquisition WESEYL 2 BE 38,801 -
220,781 -
Satisfied by: TRHAN: ‘
Cash and cash equivalents Bs 199,941 -
Other payables H@mEAR 20,840 -
220,781 -
38 Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 38 WK E QB FTE iﬁﬁ&% EEEE
in respect of the acquisition cf subsidiaries -l
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$’0C0
BT BETIT
Cash consideration i’?ﬁ{ffg (199,941) -
Cash and bank balances acquired %@&éﬁﬁ%ﬁ? 204,788 -
Net inflow of cash and cash squivalents W BB UFERER
in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries SEFREEE 4,847 -
39 Ultimate holding company 30 BRERAT
The directors regard E#781F iR R 22 &) (Legend Holding.s Limited), EERRBATRAERD A REER AR
a company established in Chinese mainland, as being the ultimate EANGI)AIE PN AV
holding company. -
40 Approval of accounts T 40 BREZ%E

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on 28th RMay AERCHBEEERN EE=FRA -1+ NH
2003. B o !




35 Disposal of subsidiaries 35 HEKMEAR
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Tangible fixed assets ExTEHEE - 305,678
Construction-in-progress EEIE - 8,033
Trade receivables BWE SN - 1,311,570
Inventories BE - 983,973
Deposits, prepayments and e BRRER
other receivables E U - 205,692
Cash and bank balances e RiR1THER - 356,261
Trade and notes payable BNESEFLRENER - (794,216)
Accruals and other payables EAERAREMGERR - (449,398)
Bank loans RITER - (944,760)
Minority interests DB EER - (84,974)
- 897,859
Gains on disposal HEZ M - 155,538
- 1,053,397
Satisfied by: SHRA
Cash and cash equivalents BaRkERRS - 229,021
Dividends payable IR - 808,538
Investments & - 70,899
Accruals BEES - (55,061)
- 1,063,397
36 Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cagh~ B HENBLOSMEZRERERRESTE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of ’ it
subsidiaries :
2003 2002
HK$'000 HKS$'C00
BETT BETT
Cash consideration BERE - 229,021
Cash and bank balances disposed of ﬁ%zfﬁﬁﬁﬁi?ﬁéﬁﬁ - (356,261)
Net outflow of cash and cash HEHE ’ZA\‘ET
equivalent in respect of the FEZHRESR
disposal of subsidiaries ERABEER - (127,240)
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For the year ended 31st March 2003
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2003 2002

Proforma

| {unaudited)

{audited) ! &=z

(BER) l(RiEEH)

HK$'000 ' HK$'000

BETR I BT
|

Turnover BEE 20,233,290 119,267,384
Earnings before interest, taxation, BFE B NE |

depreciation and amortisation expenses REEFIRESER 1,174,720 ‘ 972,580

Depreciation expenses TERA (160,304) | (187.980)

Amortisation of intangible assets BRAESE (15,246) ‘ -
{Losses)/gains on disposal of subsidiaries, an associated HEMNBLE  BELARE |

company and investment securities a7 (5E) /Es (26,802) 164,240

Interest income EIENON 77,233 | 66,604

Profit from operations EET 1,049,601 1,065,504
|

Finance cost FEER (20) i (1,676)
|

1,049,581 ' 1,063,828

Share of (losses)/profits of jointly controlled entities FEIEAFIREI TR (BB, H7 (34,756) ; 8,468

Share of profits/{losses) of associated companies EEBE QTR (BB 13,826 f (12,979)

Profit before taxation BREATE 1,028,651 - 1,089,317

Taxation HE (26,018) | (23,092)

Profit after taxation BB 1,002,633 | 1,036,225

Minority interests VEEFER 14,519 ; (9,768)
|

Profit attributable to shareholders AR PR A S 1,017,152 i 1,026,457

Dividends BB 747,411 i 383,088
Earnings per share (HK cents): EREF AL j

- Basic - EX 13.55 | 13.61

- Fully diluted - 2EEE 13.54 J 13.55

With effect from 1st June 2001, DCHL Group were spun off from &
the Group. The unaudited proforma consolidated results of the Group =
for the year ended 31st March 2002 have bsen prepared as if the T
spin-off of DCHL Group was effective throughout the year.

%ﬁ@M%ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁirmﬁﬁﬁﬁio
\

\
\
|
|
|
[

|
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IV v

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS$'000
BETR BETRT BETR BETn B%Tx
Turnover e 20,233,290 20,853,254 27,219,212 17,449,649 11,633,573
Earnings before interest, taxation, BAE - BIE-fTER
depreciation and amortisation expenses BRI R 1,174,720 1,008,838 970,700 803,278 384,940
Depreciation expenses FEER (160,304) (143,048) (123,350)  (93,275)  (72,198)
Amortisation of intangible assets BEREEER {15,2486) - (580,877) (580,877) (580,877)
impairment loss of goodwil HERERE - - (165,640 - (33,977)
(Losses)/gains on disposal of subsidiaries, HERBLAR  BEQH
an associated company and investment EE#REL
securities (&518) (26,802) 164,240 (1,338) - -
Interest income FISWA 77,233 67,360 103,214 16,373 13,620
Profit/(loss) from operations meEF/ (5H) 1,049,601 1,097,490 202,700  (64,501) (288,492)
Finance cost BBER (20)  (11,785)  (33,516)  (41,456) (46,273
1,049,581 1,085,705 169,184 (95,057) (334,765)
Share of {josses)/profits of jointly BIEREERER
controlled entities (B51]) /=) (34,756) 8,468 - - -
Share of profits/(losses) of associated EEEE LR
companies HE (B8 13,826 (12,979  (6,628) 2,803 394
Profit/(loss) before taxation BIATER (51 1,028,651 1,081,194 162,556 (93,154)  (334,371)
Taxation g (26,018} (23,092 {(19,156) 3,152 (4,958)
Profit/{loss) after taxation BRE R, (58 1,002,633 1,058,102 143,400 (90,002) (339,329)
Minority interests DEBRRER 14,519 {13,202) (29,886 (9,986) (258)
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders BEEERN, (BB 1,017,152 1,044,900 113,514 (99,988)  (339,587)
Total assets BEE 6,755,596 5,691,737 8,027,993 6,739,674 4,688,627
Total liabilities BaR
{including minority interests) (BEVHREESR) 2,567,075 2,009,703 4,145,071 2,906,655 2,433,700
Net assets EEZE 4,188,521 3,682,034 3,882,922 3,833,019 2,254,927
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(Incorporared in Hong'Kang under the Companies Ordinance)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general meeting of Legend Group Limited (the “Company™) will be held at Salon 6,

Level 3, JW Marriott Hotel, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong on 15th July, 2003 at'9:30 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2003 (og!ther with the reports of the directors and
. auditors thereon, )

2 To declare a final dividead and a special dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2003,

3 To re-elect the retiring directors and authorise the Board to fix directors’ fees. :

4. To re.oppoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors and authorise the Board to fix auditors’ remuneration.

. 5. . To consider as special business and, if thoyght fit, pass with or without modification the following resolutions as Ordinary

‘ Resolutions: '

Ordinary Resolutions o

(I)  “THAT: . . . , X
(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this Rescfition and pursuant to Section 57B of the Companies Ordinance, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot,
issue and deal with additional shares in the share capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and

optiens which might require the exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as hercinafter defined) to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such power
after the end of the Relevant Period; !

(¢} the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an optien or otherwise} by the directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this
Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to (i} a Rights lssue (as hereinafter defified), or (ii) an issue of shares upon the
exercise of options granted under any share option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant
or issue of shares or rights to acquire shares in the Company, or (iii) an issue of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company fram time to time, shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount
of the issued share capital of the Company &t the date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly: and f : ! :

. (d) for the purpose of this Resolution: : '
“Relevant Period¥ 'means the period from the.passing of.this.Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:
(i) the conélusion of the next nnnual general meeting of the Company; .
(ii) the expiration of the period. within which the next annua! genera! meeting of the Company is required by the
Companies Ordinance or the Articles of Association of the Company to be held; and
(i) the date on which the nuthority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders in general meeting of the Company; and 3 ' 3
“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the share capitai of the Company opc‘n for a period fixed by the dirzctors of the
Company to holders of shares whose names appear on the register of members,of the Company on a fixed secord date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the directors of the
Company may deem necessary or expedient in‘relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of, any recognised reguldtory body or any stock exchange in any
territory applicable to the Company).” !
D) “THAT: I

(a) subject to paragraph (b} of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to repurchase securities of the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) or on any other stock exchange on which the securities of the Company may
be listed and recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to
and in accordance with alf applicable laws and the fequirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange as amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved; !

{b) the amount of the securities of the Company which the Company is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

it ; .

(¢) for the purpose of this Resolution; |
“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever s the earliest of:
(i)  the conclusion of the:next annual general meeting of the Company; |

(i) the expiration of the pericd within which the next annual general me‘eting of the Company is required by the
Companies Ordinance or the Articles of Association of the Company to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked ar varied by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders in general meeting of the Company.” i
" (I11) “THAT conditional upon the passing of Resolutions 5(1) and S(II) as set out in the ‘nclic'c convening this meeting, the general
mandate granted to the directors of the Company to exercise the powers of the Compahy to allot, issue and deal with the shares
in the Company pursuant to Resolution 5(I) set out in the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the
addition to the aggregate nominal value of the share capital which may be allotied and issued or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted and issued by the directors of the Company pursuant to such general mandate of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal value of the share.capital of the Company repurchdsed by the Company pursuant to the
mandate to repurchase securities of the Company as referred to in Resolution 5(II) set’out in the notice convening this meeting,
provided that such extended amount shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregaté nominal amount of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of passing this Resolution,” ! '

I

Notes ;

I” Any member entitled to altend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appeint one or mare proxics to atrend and, on a poll, vote instead of
him. A proxy nced not be a member of the Company., ' |

2. Ta be valid, o proxy loem, together with any power of attorney or other guthority {if ﬁny) under which it is signed or a notarially
certified copy thereof must be completed and lodged with the Company's share registrar, Abacus Share Registrars Limited of 28/F,,
BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
meeting, ! . .

3. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 10th July, 2003 to Tuesday, 1Sth July, 2003, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected, In order to quelify for the proposed dividends, all transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged for registration with the Company's share registrar, Abscus Share
Registrars Limited ot the above address not later than 4:00 p.m, on Wednesday, Sth July, 2003,

i By Order of the Board
o Lia Chuanzh|

, Chairman
Hong Kong, 28th May, 2003
website: www,lenovo.com ’ |
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